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COUNCIL MINUTES

The City Council of the City of Raleigh met in regular session on Tuesday, June 15, 2004 at 1:00 p.m. in the City Council Chamber, Raleigh Municipal Building, Avery C. Upchurch Government Complex, 222 West Hargett Street, Raleigh, North Carolina, with the following present:



Mayor Meeker, Presiding



Mr. West



Ms. Cowell


Mr. Crowder


Mr. Hunt


Mr. Isley


Mr. Regan


Ms. Taliaferro
Mayor Meeker called the meeting to order and invocation was rendered by Rev. Ronnie Voss, The Church at White Oak.  The Pledge of Allegiance was led by two members of Brownie Troop 1763.  The following items were discussed with action taken as shown.

RECOGNITION OF SPECIAL AWARDS
DHIC – LENNOX CHASE - RECOGNIZED
Mayor Meeker recognized Greg Warren, DHIC, explaining DHIC’s Lennox Chase has just received a national award for best example of housing for people with special needs.  Mr. Warren pointed out it was a national competition sponsored by the Affordable Housing Coalition and the award was for a project for homeless and special needs.  He explained Lennox Chase is a 36 unit complex on Lake Wheeler Road.  He explained the individuals who live there are graduates of Healing Place, homeless and briefly explained the complex.  He expressed appreciation to the City for their support and participation.  Community Development Director Grant expressed appreciation to the Council for their support of their housing program.  She stated the Lennox Chase development is an example of efforts to provide housing for homeless and special populations.  She stated this is a perfect example of a partnership between the City of Raleigh, Wake County and the private partners.
RALEIGH GARDEN CLUB – CONTRIBUTION ACKNOWLEDGE
Mayor Meeker recognized representatives of the Raleigh Garden Club and expressed appreciation for the $2,000 they presented for parks projects in the City of Raleigh.

WORLD CHANGERS WEEK - PROCLAIMED
Mayor Meeker read a proclamation proclaiming the week of June 27 through July 3 as World Changers Week in the City of Raleigh.  Representatives of World Changers accepted the proclamation pointing out they have some 350 people coming from all over the United States.  They will be working on 12 different houses doing roofing, painting, minor repairs, etc.  He expressed appreciation to the City of Raleigh for allowing them to come back and provide an example of their love for Christ in a practical way.
CERTIFICATES OF APPOINTMENTS – PRESENTATIONS MADE
Mayor Meeker explained the Certificate of Appointment presentation and presented the following certificates:  Appearance Commission – Dennis Glazner and Andrew Leager; Arts Commission - Lionel Randolph and Brian Starky; Convention Center Commission - Geoff Elting and Melvin Simpson; Historic Districts Commission – Jim Lofton, Steven Cruse and Treva Jones; Substance Abuse Advisory Commission – Alber Scott.  In accepting the Certificates of Appointments, several people made comments.
MAYOR’S COMMENTS - RECEVIED
Mayor Meeker talked about the conduct of the meeting pointing out it is an extended agenda and asked everyone to be as brief as possible in their comments.
Mayor Meeker pointed out the Council has another budget work meeting on Monday, June 21.  He stated it would be good to get all of the questions in and at the meeting the Council would go the questions/answers and start making decisions as soon as possible.  He asked all Council members to get any questions they have to the City Manager as soon as possible and the Manager to provide the answers as quickly as possible.  
CONSENT AGENDA
CONSENT AGENDA – APPROVED AS AMENDED
Mayor Meeker presented the Consent Agenda indicating all items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and maybe enacted by one motion.  If a Councilor requests discussion on an item, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.  He explained the vote on the Consent Agenda would be a roll call vote.  Mayor Meeker stated he had received the following requests to withdraw items from the Consent Agenda:  Certifications of Consistency, Subdivision/Site Plan Standards, budget amendment in Public Works Department Relating to ART Program, Budget Amendment – Community Development – Regan; Contract Amendment – Rolesville – Cowell; Condemnation Tryon Road – Lineberger – Crowder.  Without objection those items were withdrawn from the Consent Agenda.  Ms. Taliaferro moved Administration’s recommendations on the remaining items on the Consent Agenda be upheld.  Her motion was seconded by Ms. Cowell and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows.
COMPUTER EQUIPMENT – AGREEMENT WITH EPLUS GROUP INCORPORATED – EXTENDED ONE YEAR
The City has an existing agreement with ePlus Group, Inc. to provide lease of computer equipment, as well as equipment installation and warranty maintenance.
Recommendation:  That this agreement be extended one-year to June 30, 2005.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.
ROAD RACE – AUTISM SOCIETY OF NORTH CAROLINA – APPROVED CONDITIONALLY
William Lane, representing the Autism Society of North Carolina, would like to hold a 5K road race fundraiser on Saturday, October 9, 2004 from 8:30 a.m. to 10:30 a.m.  This request was approved at the June 1 Council meeting; however all the necessary street closures were not included.
Recommendation:  Approve the closing the portions of S. Person Street, Martin Street and S. Blount Street as well as and the route as requested with conditions as noted in the agenda packet.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.
STREET CLOSINGS – VARIOUS BLOCK PARTIES – APPROVED CONDITIONALLY
The agenda presented the following requests for temporary street closings.

Marcia Nelson requests a street closure on Saturday, June 26, 2004 from 2:00 p.m. to 12:00 a.m. for a birthday party.  She also requests waiver of all City ordinances pertaining to the possession or consumption of alcoholic beverages on City property and waiver of all noise ordinances.
Paul Meyer, representing the Boylan Heights Association, requests permission to close two streets on Sunday, August 1, 2004 from 3:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. for a neighborhood celebration.  He also requests waiver of all City ordinances pertaining to the possession or consumption of alcoholic beverages on City property and waiver of all noise ordinances.
Linda Rocchetti requests a street closure on Tuesday, August 3, 2004 from 5:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. for a national night out block party.  She also requests waiver of all City ordinances pertaining to the possession or consumption of alcoholic beverages on City property.
Velma Champlain, representing the First Church of God of Raleigh, requests a street closure on Saturday, August 21, 2004 from 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. for the Community Outreach Celebration.
Recommendation:  Approval of the various street closings and waivers as outlined according to information included in the reports in agenda packet.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.
STREET CLOSING – SOUTHALL ROAD – RESOLUTION OF INTENT ADOPTED
As part of the Skycrest Drive Extension II project right-of-way agreement with Tom Bartholomew, the City agreed to remove all utilities and easements and initiate closing the right-of-way near the New Hope Road/Southall Road intersection.  NCDOT will formally abandon maintenance of the right-of-way after City Council action.
Recommendation:  Adopt a resolution of intent to schedule a public hearing.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.  See Resolution 105.
STREETSCAPE MASTER PLAN – SOUTHEAST RALEIGH – PUBLIC HEARING AUTHORIZED
The Southeast District Plan, adopted by City Council in April 2003, called for the improvement of streetscapes along selected corridors in southeast Raleigh.  The Southeast Raleigh Streetscape Master Plan is an effort to coordinate streetscape improvement projects throughout southeast Raleigh over the next ten years.
Recommendation:  Authorize a public hearing on Thursday, July 22, 2004 for the Southeast Raleigh Streetscape Master Plan.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.
STREET CLOSING – 9-2004 – WEST NORTH STREET – PUBLIC HEARING AUTHORIZED
The City has been petitioned by Brian Michot of Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., agent for Triangle Transit Authority, to close the right-of-way of all West North Street within the boundary of the existing rail corridor.
Recommendation:  Adopt a resolution authorizing a public hearing on Tuesday, July 20, 2004.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.  See Resolution 106.
STREET CLOSING – 10-2004 – DUN BARTON ROAD/ED DRIVE – RESOLUTION OF INTENT ADOPTED
The City has been petitioned by Virginia M. Yates to close the right-of-way in its entirety from the western property line of 3700 Ed Drive to Dun Barton Road.
Recommendation:  Adopt a resolution authorizing a public hearing on Tuesday, July 20, 2004.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.  See Resolution 107.
ENCROACHMENT – FALLS POINTE SUBDIVISION – APPROVED CONDITIONALLY
A request has been received from Falls Pointe Partnership to encroach on the right-of-way at the intersection of Lake Villa Way, Azari Court and Autumn Oak for the purpose of installing a 20 foot wide private drainage system encroaching 50 feet along either side in the right-of-way 3 feet to 6 feet in depth.  Council members received a map showing the locations in their agenda packet.
Recommendation:  Approve the encroachment subject to conditions outlined in Resolution 1996-153, owner obtaining a right-of-way permit from the Inspections Department prior to installation, owner containing NC One Call Center 48 hours prior to excavation and remain 10 feet from existing utilities and developers/homeowners association being responsible for the maintenance of the drainage system.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.
ENCROACHMENT – 723 ST. MARY’S STREET – APPROVED CONDITIONALLY
A request has been received from the Wake County Board of Education to encroach on City right-of-way at 723 St. Mary’s Street (100 feet north of the intersection of St. Mary’s and Peace Street).  The encroachment is needed in order to install 25 feet of a 24 inch RCP pipe to an existing 12 inch pipe extending from the right-of-way to the existing storm sewer manhole in the middle of St. Mary’s Street and the installation of a new curb inlet.  This is needed to increase the capacity of Broughton High School storm drainage system and prevent flooding.
Recommendation:  Approval subject to conditions outlined in Resolution 1996-153, owner obtaining a right-of-way permit from Inspections Department prior to installation, owner contacting NC One Call Center 48 hours prior to excavation and remaining 10 feet from existing utilities; owners/contractor installing a tree protection fence along the edge of the pipe/ditch near the existing 22 inch sugar maple drip line to prevent root damage and dumping of excavation soil on the tree root zone; owner/contractor contacting the City of Raleigh Forestry Specialist to inspect tree protection before starting work.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.
BUDGET AMENDMENTS – VARIOUS – ORDINANCE ADOPTED
The agenda presented the following budget amendments:
Community Development - $7,382.76 – To appropriate funds for acquisition, relocation and demolition costs for properties in the College Park Idlewild redevelopment area.
Parks and Recreation - $2,000 – To accept a donation from the Raleigh Garden Club to increase accounts to continue support of beautification of Raleigh Parks.
Parks and Recreation - $7,288 – To accept a donation from Rick Marshall to increase accounts for completing a signage design manual.
The agenda outlined the revenue and expenditure accounts involved in the budget amendments.
Recommendation:  Approval of the budget amendments as outlined.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.  See Ordinance 651TF20.
TRANSFERS – VARIOUS – ORDINANCE ADOPTED
The agenda presented recommended transfers in the Information Technology and Public Utilities Departments.  The agenda outlined the Code accounts involved and the reasons for the transfers.
Recommendation:  Approve transfers as outlined on the agenda.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.  See Ordinance 651TF20.

TRAFFIC – VARIOUS CHANGES – APPROVED TO BE EFFECTIVE JUNE 30, 2004
It is recommended that the Traffic Schedule be amended to include traffic controls in the areas approved for annexation effective June 30, 2004.  The Traffic Schedule entries were in the agenda packet and reflect existing traffic controls such as traffic signals, stop signs, no parking zones, channelization, and speed limits other than 35 mph.  The effective date will be June 30, 2004.
Recommendation:  Approval of the changes in the traffic code as outlined.  Upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Cowell – 8 ayes.  See Ordinance 652.

END OF CONSENT AGENDA
CERTIFICATIONS OF CONSISTENCY – VARIOUS – MANAGER AUTHORIZED TO SIGN
Agencies serving the homeless may apply for funds under HUD’s SuperNOFA grant program.  All applications to HUD for funding under SuperNOFA must submit a certification of consistency that is consistent with the goals of the City’s Consolidated Plan at the time of the grant submittal.  Special populations, such as the homeless and disabled, are a First Priority housing need.  Sixteen agencies/programs are applying for supportive housing funds in the amount of $2,680,739.  Two agencies are asking for first time funding for new projects, with the remaining 14 requesting renewal funding.  The grant applications/proposals are due to HUD by July 1, 2004.
The Community Development staff has reviewed these requests for certifications and determined they are consistent with the City of Raleigh’s adopted Five Year Consolidated Plan.
New Projects:
a. Winning Ways Inc.  Establishment of “Joshua House,” located at 3000 Rock Quarry Road, to provide permanent housing to five chronically homeless men.  Developed by Winning Ways, Inc., which was established by Word of God Fellowship, the program will include case management, life skills classes, job training, substance abuse counseling and computer training.

b. Wake County Human Services.  Request for 20 housing vouchers under HUD’s Shelter Plus Care Program.  CASA will administer vouchers targeting chronically homeless disabled individuals.  Housing vouchers will be used for scattered site housing.

Renewal Projects:
c. Pan Lutheran Ministries.  Renewal application for the Poole Road Transitional Housing Program, which provides intensive case management and life skills to 18 homeless families or 54 individuals.

d. Pan Lutheran Ministries/Families Together Plus.  Renewal application to provide supportive transitional housing and intensive case management to eight homeless families at the 908 Plainview Drive location.

e. Haven House Inc.  Request for renewal funds for scattered housing sites serving single homeless adults 18 - 21 years of age under the Haven House Services Preparation for Independent Living Program.

f. Passage Home Inc.  Renewal of the Hopes & Dreams Project, which helps homeless families, including female ex-offenders with children, to make a successful transition from prison to economic self-sufficiency and socially connect them with community life.

g. Passage Home Inc.  Joint renewal project with Triangle Family Services of the Essential Services for Homeless Families, which provides permanent housing and fosters economic self-sufficiency to homeless families with children.  At least 38 families will be assisted through existing units located on Poole Road, Stedman Road, and Garfield Street.

h. Community Alternatives for Supportive Housing (CASA).  Renewal project requesting funding for 13 units of permanent housing and supportive services to adults who are homeless and have a mental illness and/or co-occurring substance addiction.

i. Community Alternatives for Supportive Housing (CASA).  Renewal project with Wake County Human Services for a transitional housing program that serves 12 single adults who are homeless and have severe and persistent mental illness.

j. Community Alternatives for Supportive Housing (CASA).  Renewal application for funding of Aurora Program, providing transitional housing for six homeless women with substance addiction.  The program provides support, safe housing away from drug-infested neighborhoods, and opportunity to learn new skills while attaining drug-free life style.

k. Wake County Human Services/Homeless Veteran Services.  Renewal project for the South Wilmington Street center case management program, providing onsite support for homeless veterans through outreach and intensive case management services under a Homeless Veteran Service Officer.

l. Wake County Human Services/Community Outreach Team.  Renewal funding for staff who serve homeless individuals with mental illness and/or chemical dependence disorders.  Staff consists of a nurse, clinical social worker, social worker and substance abuse counselor.

m. Wake County Human Services/Shelter Plus Care 1993.  Second year renewal to continue a program that services 61 formerly homeless adults with mental illness and/or chronic substance abuse problems by providing tenant based rental assistance.

n. Wake County Human Services/Shelter Plus Care 1996.  Fourth year joint renewal project with Community Alternatives for Supportive Housing (CASA) that services at least 25 formerly homeless adults with severe mental illness and/or chronic substance abuse problems by providing tenant based rental assistance.

o. Wake County Human Services/Shelter Plus Care 1997.  Third year renewal of a joint project with Community Alternatives for Supportive Housing (CASA) providing tenant based rental assistance to formerly homeless adults with one or more of the following diagnoses:  mental illness, chronic substance abuse problems, developmental disabilities, HIV/AIDS.  A projected 37 persons will be served.

p. Wake County Human Services/Shelter Plus Care 1999.  First year renewal of funding request to provide tenant based rental assistance to an estimated 37 persons who are formerly homeless living in Wake County.  The subsidy recipients have mental illness, HIV/AIDS, chronic substance abuse problems or a combination of these disabilities.

Recommendation:  Approve for the City Manager to sign the Certifications of Consistency.
Mr. Regan pointed out he has consistently voted against Federal tax dollars being used in the City housing program as he feels it is unconstitutional.  He talked about the oath of office Council members took to uphold the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution and Laws of North Carolina.  He indicated it talks about all powers not specifically delegated or not authorized and pointed out the Constitution has only 12 or 13 powers delegated to Federal government.  He does not feel that the City Council should aid and abet in violating the Constitution of the United States.
Mayor Meeker pointed out Mr. Regan makes his position known on this issue at every opportunity and it does take Council time.  He questioned if there is anyway that the Council could agree to allow Mr. Regan to have the same stated objection any time the City applies for and receives Federal funds.  He questioned if Mr. Regan would be agreeable to that.  Mr. Regan stated maybe sometime in the future but at this point he feels he states his objection concisely and would continue to do so.

Mayor Meeker moved approval of the recommendation on the certifications of consistency as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Mr. West and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Regan who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
TEXT CHANGE – SUBDIVISION/SITE PLAN STANDARDS AMENDMENT – PUBLIC HEARING AUTHORIZED
Through a process of public input and review of the Parks, Recreation and Greenways System Plan of the Raleigh Comprehensive Plan (the Park Plan) the City Council adopted increased widths for the Capital Area Greenway corridors.  It is necessary to amend the Subdivision/Site Plan Standards Ordinance to incorporate the change.  A public hearing for Thursday, July 22 is requested for this text change.  A copy of the revised ordinance was in the agenda packet.
Recommendation:  Authorize public hearing on Thursday, July 22, 2004.
Mr. Regan explained this proposal pointing out it does increase the width for the area greenway corridors.  He stated he would like to take a little time to look at this and did not feel it was appropriate to be on the Consent Agenda.  Ms. Taliaferro pointed out the recommendation is to authorize a public hearing before the Planning Commission and the City Council and then it would go through the normal process and there would be ample opportunity for input and discussion; therefore she would support going ahead with the public hearing.  Mayor Meeker pointed out there is an increased width but the property would be dedicated and/or paid for.  Mr. Isley questioned why this is being discussed in the first place.  City Manager Allen pointed it is part of the parks plan that was adopted as a part of the Comprehensive Plan.
Parks and Recreation Director Duncan pointed out it is a part of the comprehensive plan pointing out the parks element went through an extensive public review and hearing process.  He stated this public hearing would be another opportunity for public review and input.  He pointed out greenways are dedicated or the City reimburses the property owner.  In response to questioning from Mr. Isley, Mr. Duncan pointed out we have greenways of various widths based on the size of the stream or creek.  The largest is the Neuse River which is a 150 foot buffer.  He stated this applies only to those creeks and/or streams that are a part of the Capital Area Greenway corridor.  Mr. Isley questioned why we need to amend the standards with Mr. Duncan pointing out there was a sentiment to increase the buffer to provide for additional benefits.  He pointed out the plan include some 18 reasons for the needed increased width with those reasons ranging from water quality, air, buffering, etc.  Mr. Isley asked about the current widths.  Mr. Duncan explained it varies and is measured from the bank.  He pointed out as the County has taken over responsibility they are looking for a 300 foot buffer.  
Mr. Hunt stated he understands this is not taking the buffer; the property owner would be reimbursed.  Mr. Regan questioned what would happen if someone did not want to sell questioning if the City would condemn the buffer area.  Mr. Duncan pointed out that is an option that is used infrequently.  Mr. Regan pointed out the City is using it for the Convention Center and he just does not want the Council to have another excuse for taking land from a property owner and paying what the courts rule say pay.  People may not want to sell the property.  Ms. Taliaferro moved approval of the public hearing.  Her motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker and put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Isley and Mr. Regan who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
ROLESVILLE WATER AND SEWER MERGER AGREEMENT – AMENDMENT #1 - APPROVED
The City currently has an existing agreement with the Town of Rolesville for merging their water and sewer system with the City’s.  Amendment #1 is for additional base water and sewer capacity to be purchased by the Town of Rolesville at a cost of $3,325,500, paid prior to January 1, 2007.
Recommendation:  Approve Amendment #1.
Ms. Cowell pointed out she understands this would be giving additional base water and sewer capacity for Rolesville and questioned the basis for this amendment.  City Manager Allen explained the merger agreement utilized with Garner and Rolesville and explained how the base capacity was developed and how there was different calculations used.  This would allow Rolesville to bring their base capacity similar to how Garner’s base capacity was calculated.  Mayor Meeker pointed out this shows the City of Raleigh can and is flexible with the merger agreements.  Ms. Cowell moved approval of Amendment No. 1 of the Rolesville water and sewer merger agreement.  Her motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
BUDGET AMENDMENT – PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT - APPROVED
The agenda presented a budget amendment of $240,000 in the Public Works Department to appropriate fund balance to budget for Accessible Raleigh Transportation program expenditures for the remainder of the fiscal year.  Expenditures have exceeded program revenue and general fund support for the program.  Residual funds from the Transit program are available in fund balance in fund 410.  The agenda outlined the revenue and expenditure accounts involved in the budget amendment.  Mr. Regan pointed out this is nice but he does not think it is right for the City to take taxpayers money for this purpose.  Mayor Meeker pointed out this provides transportation services for the handicapped.  Mayor Meeker moved approval of the budget amendment as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Mr. Crowder and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Regan who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Ordinance 651TF20.
CONDEMNATION – TRYON ROAD WIDENING – JUDY LINEBERGER – RESOLUTION ADOPTED
The agenda presented a recommendation to adopt a resolution of condemnation relating to the Judy J. Lineberger property at 2816 Tryon Road which is needed in the Tryon Road widening Part B.  Staff had recommended adoption of a resolution of condemnation.
Mr. Crowder pointed out he and Ms. Lineberger have been playing telephone tag.  He stated he had withdrawn this item from the Consent Agenda to give her an opportunity to speak.  Ms. Lineberger was not at the meeting.  Mr. Crowder pointed out he had looked at the issue, reviewed the data and doesn’t see a problem as negotiations have been similar to those on the adjacent property.  Mr. Crowder moved approval of the resolution of condemnation.  His motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker and put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Regan who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Resolution 108.
Later in the meeting, Mr. Regan asked to change his vote on this issue and a motion by Ms. Cowell seconded by Mr. Hunt passed unanimously.  Mr. Regan was allowed to change his vote to the affirmative; therefore, the motion to adopt the resolution of condemnation on the Lineberger property passed unanimously.
TRANSFER – COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT – ORDINANCE ADOPTED
The agenda presented a transfer in the amount of $224,617.24 in the Community Development to provide funds for acquisition, relocation and demolition cost associated with the purchase of properties in the College Park Idlewild redevelopment area.  The agenda outlined the code accounts involved.  Mr. Regan pointed out he had withdrawn this from the Consent Agenda as he wanted to voice his standard objection of using Federal funds for housing program.  Mayor Meeker moved approval of the transfer as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Cowell and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Regan who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Ordinance 651TF20.
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION
PLANNING COMMISSION CONSENT AGENDA – APPROVED AS PRESENTED

Mayor Meeker presented the Planning Commission Consent Agenda indicating it would be handled in the same manner as the regular Consent Agenda.  Mayor Meeker stated he had not received any requests to withdraw any items from the Planning Commission Consent Agenda.  Ms. Taliaferro moved the Planning Commission recommendations as outlined on the Consent Agenda be upheld.  Her motion was seconded by Mr. Crowder and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  The items on the Planning Commission Consent Agenda were as follows.
REZONING Z-40-03 – BLUE RIDGE ROAD – DENIED

This request is to rezone approximately 17.39 acres, currently zoned Residential-4 (0.42 acre), Residential-6 with Special Highway Overlay District-1 (10.55 acres) and Office and Institution-1 with Special Highway Overlay District-2 (6.84 acres). The proposal is to rezone the property to Office and Institution-2 Conditional Use District with Special Highway Overlay District-2.
CR-10674 from the Planning Commission recommends that this request be denied.  Planning Commission recommendation upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Crowder – 8 ayes.
REZONING Z-27-04 – EAST FRANKLIN STREET/NORTH PERSON STREET – APPROVED – ORDINANCE ADOPTED

This request is to rezone approximately 1.14 acres, currently zoned Buffer Commercial with Pedestrian Business Overlay District (PBOD).  The proposal is to rezone the property to Neighborhood Business Conditional Use with PBOD to remain.

CR-10675 from the Planning Commission recommends that this request be approved in accordance with conditions dated June 8, 2004.  Planning Commission recommendation upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Crowder – 8 ayes.  See Ordinance 653ZC551.
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN - SAUNDERS NORTH AREA – PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULED
This request is for City Council to take action on the Saunders North Area Redevelopment Plan following the public hearing scheduled for July 22, 2004. The Saunders North Area Redevelopment Plan is located on the southwestern edge of Downtown Raleigh, immediately adjacent to the eastern border of the Boylan Heights Historic District.  The area is generally bounded by W. Cabarrus St. on the north, Western Blvd. on the south, the eastern boundary of the Boylan Heights Historic District on the west and portions of S. West St. and S. Saunders Street on the east. 

CR-10676 from the Planning Commission recommends that City Council move forward with appropriate action on the Saunders North Area Redevelopment Plan following the required public hearing which has been previously scheduled by Council for July 22, 2004.  Planning Commission recommendation upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Crowder – 8 ayes.
REZONING Z-69-02 – LOUISBURG ROAD - REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF 2-YEAR PERIOD - APPROVAL

This is a request for waiver of the 2-year waiting period for zoning case Z-69-02, denied on January 20, 2004.

CR-10677 from the Planning Commission recommends that this request be approved.  Planning Commission recommendation upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Crowder – 8 ayes.
STREET NAME CHANGE - 3-04 –STONE RIDGE SUBDIVISION – RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING VARIOUS NAME CHANGES
This request is to approve a street name change of: Luzerne Avenue to Stone Station Drive, Munich Court to Glass Ridge Road, Stockholm Drive to Amber Bluffs Crescent, Bremen Court to Falcon Knoll Circle, Liedge Road to Banded Iron Lane, Vienna Drive to Jade Forest Trail, Strasbourg Drive to Sparkling Brook Drive, Paris Drive to Onyx Mill Court, Zurich Drive to Opal Falls Circle, pursuant to standard Procedure 900-9(D) regarding 100% property owner approval of non-duplicative street name.

CR-10678 from the Planning Commission recommends that the various street name changes be approved, and that the name changes be made effective June 18, 2004.  Planning Commission recommendation upheld on Consent Agenda Taliaferro/Crowder – 8 ayes.  See Resolution 109.
END OF PLANNING COMMISSION CONSENT AGENDA
SPECIAL ITEMS
WHITAKER MILL SENIOR CENTER – INFORMATION RECEIVED; INFORMATION REQUESTED – ITEM TO BE PLACED ON JULY 20, 2004 AGENDA
Ms. Cowell requested that this item be placed on the agenda to receive a report from Administration concerning the County’s proposal/options as well as information on senior citizen activities provided by the City of Raleigh/Wake County, cost involved, etc.  A representative from Wake County will be available to update Council.
Joe Durham, Deputy Manager of Wake County, pointed out County representatives have had several meetings with the senior population in the Whitaker Mill area.  He stated he was at the meeting to clarify the County’s position that the senior center will remain in that location.  He stated however they will continue to look at other options and if another option is found that is agreeable to everyone that maybe pursued.  He stated if another location is found it must meet the size, locational criteria, access to transportation, parking, and affordability criteria.  Mr. Durham pointed out there are three options: 1) stay in the present location; 2) lease another space in that general area; 3) consider building a new center.  Mr. Durham pointed out they will continue to have meetings with the representatives of the Whitaker Mill Senior Center to discuss the options.  The next meeting is scheduled for September 25.  He expressed appreciation to the City of Raleigh and the Parks and Recreation staff which has been involved in these efforts and they continue to ask for the City’s assistance.
Ms. Cowell expressed appreciation for Wake County’s responsiveness to this issue.  She stated however she would like to see a broader role and collaborative effort between the City and County.  She pointed out there are 46 senior clubs in the City of Raleigh and she feels we need to look at how to best coordinate the activities.  Should the City consider providing more activities in the north Raleigh area or exactly what the future role is?  She stated she feels there are some other questions that we need to address such as do we continue with what we’ve got or do we look at a broader more collaborative effort.
Ms. Taliaferro pointed out the Whitaker Mill Senior Center provides programs through grants that the City does not provide.  The City provides the leisure service and the county provides other programs.  She stated maybe we should look at where the line is drawn.  She pointed out the City does provide a lot of senior programs throughout the City and the City in no way is trying to duplicate what the County does but to complement the County’s work.  Ms. Cowell agreed and pointed out we have a 10 year plan for ending homelessness questioning if there is a plan to deal with the scores of senior citizens in Raleigh.  She stated there are a lot of productive seniors that participate in our programs questioned if we have any means of coordinating all of the work, the volunteer work, activities, etc.  She stated she is not convinced that we have looked at the comprehensive needs of the future rather than just doing what we have always done.  Ms. Taliaferro pointed out the Council received information from Parks and Recreation and Community Services on programs that are available.  She stated there are different departments which work with the senior issue and maybe we should pull the reports together on what we do and what our planning efforts are.  Ms. Cowell stated she is looking at the possibility of having some type of brainstorming session to look at what we do and what we plan for the future.
Mr. Regan stated he wants all the seniors and all of the people of Raleigh to live a good, vibrant life but he is not sure it is the responsibility of the City to take on that responsibility.  People should take on the responsibility of caring for their parents and loved ones as he fears if government takes on that responsibility it will be a burden that will take away from the core services required by the City.  Mr. Crowder questioned if it would be better to go back to the senior citizens and have them develop a group to advise the City on how their needs would be best served.  Ms. Taliaferro pointed out they are doing that.  She also talked about the park survey and pointed out all of the information is out there and Administration could pull it together and provide the Council with a report on what is being done and what could be done.  After brief discussion on how to proceed, Administration was asked to provide the report as outlined and to place this item on the July 20 agenda for further consideration.
INTERLOCAL FUNDING – PROCESS - DIRECTION GIVEN
During the June 1 Council meeting, a motion was made that the Council not approve additional projects utilizing interlocal funds until the Council has a fixed cost on the new Convention Center.  It was directed that the item be placed on this agenda for further consideration.  A representative of Wake County will be available for the discussion.

Mayor Meeker pointed out it will be 18 to 20 months before we get a fixed cost on the new convention center.
Joe Durham, Wake County, pointed out the City and County jointly started a process about 2 weeks ago which indicates applications are due by June 20, 2004.  He pointed out it has been made very clear that the City and County will be looking at prioritizations of requests but no commitment for funding.  It will be a joint process to develop the priorities.  Mayor Meeker pointed out he had asked the County Commissioners to start thinking about the process and which projects would be prioritized.
Mr. Hunt moved the Council not commit any additional projects for funding from the Interlocal funds until such time as the City has the guaranteed maximum cost for the convention center.  He stated this would not imply the projects are not going to be prioritized but no commitments made.  His motion was seconded by Mr. Regan.
Mayor Meeker stated he would vote against the motion as he does not feel a decision should be made until we know what has been requested.  Ms. Cowell stated she appreciates Mr. Hunt’s concerns and comments and talked about risk management and agreeing that we should not dip into general funds.  She stated as we get closer on the guaranteed maximum for the convention center cost we would have better financial information.  Mr. West questioned if the Council had not already agreed on a procedure with Mr. Hunt pointing out he is not objecting to prioritization but does not feel we should hold off until we know the cost of the convention center.  Ms. Taliaferro made a substitute motion that the City and County go ahead and have the prioritization discussion and meeting so that a commitment could be made to projects that the group intends to fund and others will know what to expect that is go ahead and have the prioritization meeting.  Her substitute motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker.
Mr. Regan pointed out he would go a little further than what Mr. Hunt suggested and would like to make a substitute motion.  Mayor Meeker ruled that out of order as there is a motion and a substitute motion on the floor.  Mr. Regan pointed out his concern goes beyond the cost of constructing the new convention center and into the operation of the convention center.  He stated the convention center is operating at a deficit and he expects that deficit to continue and if the deficit is greater than anticipated, the City may get into the position of having to dip into general funds to cover the operation of the convention center.  The substitute motion made by Ms. Taliaferro was put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Hunt, Mr. Regan and Mr. Isley who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
NEIGHBORHOOD PRESERVATION TASK FORCE – PROPOSAL – REFERRED TO LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE
During the May 18, 2004 Council meeting the City Council discussed the proposal for licensing for owners of chronic problem residential rental properties.  It was directed that the item be placed on the June 1 agenda to receive a report on a proposed draft ordinance.  At the June 1 meeting Assistant City Manager Howe presented a status report and Council requested this item be placed on the June 15 agenda for discussion after a meeting among the major stakeholder groups regarding the final details of a targeted rental occupancy permitting program.  A general consensus has been reached at a meeting that included members of the Neighborhood Preservation and Housing Task Force, the Triangle Apartment Association, the Raleigh Regional Association of Realtors and City staff.  An outline of the proposed permitting program and a draft ordinance are in the agenda packet.  At this meeting the group recommended holding a public hearing on the text change at the Tuesday, August 3 City Council meeting, and that in the interim other communities with such programs be contacted to request their review of our proposed program prior to enactment.  This period will also be used to obtain information on the scope, cost and timing of computer enhancements to administer the program.

Recommendation:  Hold a public hearing on the proposed Probationary Rental Occupancy Permitting Program at the Tuesday, August 3 City Council meeting and direct City staff to continue to contact staff in other communities with similar programs in order to collect their comments on this proposal.  If the text change is to be enacted by Council, set the effective date after information on timing of computer enhancements is received.

Mayor Meeker indicated as this proposal has evolved it has broadened.  He thought it was to apply to single family homes and duplexes.  It has expanded dramatically.  He feels the license should apply only to single family houses or duplexes.  City Attorney McCormick indicated the language could be changed to that extent.  Mr. Crowder talked about the task force involvement in this issue pointing out he would like to hear from them on the latest proposal.  Mr. Isley stated he would like for everyone to be given an opportunity to speak.
John Miller, Neighborhood Preservation Task Force presented the following prepared statement:

We have said from the start that if you are going to have a “targeted license” as opposed to a rental registry it needed to be airtight with no loopholes. Current version of the ordinance could be improved as follows
12-2164(d) is unclear and needs to be more specific. If a violation occurs during the first 12 months of the permit and then there is a two year extension would that result in less than 36 months in the program? For example, if you get two violations in the first week of the permit, you’re in for less than 36 months? So what is the intent? The License should always have a minimum life of 3 years so.  We suggest you change it to read that any extension means 3 years from date of the last violation. For repeat violators this extends the permit sunset deadline past the 3 year permit end. 

21-2167e Permit revocation and reinstatement the one year revocation is too short. Once the permit is revoked, what is the reinstatement process? For example, assume someone has a permit and accumulates 3 violations fast enough to warrant revocation. Could they not board up the property for a year and then without remedy start renting again?  If the property is revoked fast enough, nothing compels the person to comply or become more professional through city education efforts. Since the law says you can board a house for a year the revocation time period needs to be extended to avoid that possibility. What about people who have been chronically revoked or have many properties with permits requiring a disproportionate level of city services? Would many revocations warrant withholding future permits indefinably?

We suggest:

--2 year permit revocation period

--Unit is re-inspected at re-issuance of permit to certify compliance

--Re-permitted for 3 years to assure compliance

--Owner submit with permit a management plan that includes a local responsible party

--Multiple revocations should require 5 year suspension such as the case in other programs

--Probationary status for revocation should be based on the three year period not two as in current draft. Final violations will be longer battles and more time is needed for potential court resolutions. 

2163 f.c. Definitions for owner would only include lenders “of record” if they have been notified of the properties status in the program and if the lender is taking steps to protect its investment and has assigned a quailed responsible party to act on its behalf no permit would be required.

2164(f) recording the permits monthly at the city clerk’s office is not sufficient public notice of a permit being issued for a property. The city should also file a memorandum to record in the courthouse when a permit is issued this is the only way future buyers, brokers, lenders ,insurers  etc will  be provided adequate notice. In addition   lenders of record should be given notice of a permit being issued on a property

ADD 

Audit component to review the ordinance for effectiveness based on agreed criteria such as citations issued vs. violations, case time in system, housing units brought into compliance etc.

NEW ISSUE From the bottom of flow chart included in the package: if a permit is revoked then only other permitted properties are revoked? Does this mean that somebody will always be in business if they have any non-permitted properties? 

We do not see this anywhere in the ordinance here. Up to this point we have all been under the impression that “targeted license” meant that at SOME POINT a LANDLORD (not a property) would LOSE THE OPPORTUNITY to conduct business. As a landlord said in a committee meeting, “everybody’s threshold is different.” By offering this loophole are you inviting the original issue of “chronic” problem property owners?  A property is always repairable or expendable. Landlords with multiple revocations should be held “wholly” responsible for long term negative pattern of behavior. Considering that other “exempt” businesses (for example doctors and lawyers) have existing regulatory oversight (other than the city) that forces compliance in order to avoid revocation of a license, this is inconsistent. 

Note to council

This proposed ordinance differs dramatically from related recommendations contained in the task force report. We question the removal of a universal recording component in favor of a targeted program for only problem rental properties. These programs combined will be much more effective.  We do not consider larger multi family properties with onsite management and professional management training to be a problem for the threatened   neighborhoods of Raleigh. Mid sized older properties do need addressed with more enforcement however these are different issues that faced in SF rentals.  These changes have come from your staff and we will let them explain their reasoning.  The programs recommended in the TF report are used in other areas throughout the country. We would encourage the staff during the next few weeks to continue to solicit feedback from other cites that have these programs in place. Learn from their experience and get frank suggestions on how they would improve what they have and mold our plan to better serve the neighborhoods of Raleigh.
Kathy Powell, Triangle Apartment Association, National Drive, indicated her group does have some concerns.  She stated she would not get into the particulars of the concern and she does not feel the proposal is ready to go to public hearing and she would like an opportunity for additional work to take place so that an air tight document could be developed before going to public hearing.  She stated the stakeholders feel there should be more time.  She would like for the stakeholders to have an opportunity to get together one more time and work on the various issues.  She stated the proposal that is before the Council today does include multi-family.  She stated she feels everyone is in favor of going after the bad guys but does not feel we should penalize the good guys in the process.  Mayor Meeker questioned other than just who the proposal applies what the other issues are.  Mr. Isley stated he does not feel there is general consensus.  The group is closing the loop holes and that was being done by staff.  He pointed out that the group meets, provides input and there is discussion at staff level and then the group sees a document that is completely different than what each side expected.  He stated he is afraid we are nick-picking and wasting a lot of time.  Mr. Regan pointed out the item was in Law and Public Safety Committee and if the item could be referred back to that Committee they could discuss it at the next meeting and bring it back to the City Council hopefully for a July public hearing.  He stated the Committee could look at the Mayor’s suggestions and provide an opportunity for everyone to see the final version.  Mayor Meeker stated he wants the proposal to apply to single family and duplexes only not multi-family.  City Manager Allen pointed out Assistant City Manager Howe is the key resource person and he is going to be out of town for the next couple of weeks and questioned if it could be held another round in Law and Public Safety Committee.  Mayor Meeker stated if it were in Committee more than 4 more weeks it could be pulled out.  Mr. Regan stated that the item should go back to Law and Public Safety Committee to ensure that all major stakeholders understand it or at least have seen it.  Mr. Regan moved that the item be referred to Law and Public Safety Committee with the understanding it would be reported back to City Council the second meeting in July either as a Committee report or the Clerk would be directed to place it on as a special item.  It was agreed to follow that course of action. 
SU-2-04 - RI RA POWERHOUSE SQUARE - APPROVED
During the June 1 Council meeting a hearing was held to consider a request from Ri Ra/Powerhouse Square to allow outdoor amplification in the Shopping Center Zoning District at 126 North West Street.  Following the hearing the Council voted to approve the special use permit and directed the City Attorney to draft the appropriate findings of fact and conclusions of law to be placed on this agenda for consideration of approval.  The proposed findings and conclusions were as follows:
Findings of Fact:
1. All parties necessary to the determination of this request were properly notified and were or had the opportunity to be represented at the hearing.

2. Raleigh City Code §12-5003 requires the following conditions be satisfied before an amplified entertainment permit may be issued.

a.
The establishment’s proximity to residential areas, schools, churches, and health care facilities.

b.
The establishment’s history of compliance or noncompliance with noise and nuisance law.

c.
Access with respect to pedestrian and automotive safety, traffic flow and emergency service.

d.
Intensity including such considerations as size, location, hours and/or conditions or operation, and number of participants.

e.
Landscaping, screening, fencing with respect to protecting affected properties from anticipated noise, loss of privacy, and glare; preserving of important natural features; or harmonizing the request with affected properties.

f.
Control or elimination of noise, dust, vibration and lighting.

g.
The proposed use will not adversely impact public services and facilities such as parking, traffic, police, etc., and that the secondary effects of such uses will not adversely impact on adjacent properties.  The secondary effects would include but not be limited to noise, light, stormwater runoff, parking, pedestrian circulation and safety.

Conclusions of Law:

1.
The requirements of the Raleigh City Code having been met, the applicant is entitled to a Special Use Permit.

2.
Pursuant to the provisions of G.S. 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes, the City Council is empowered to place conditions upon a special use permit.

3.
The request made in SU-2-04 is hereby granted.

Mayor Meeker moved approval as presented.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  
FAIR HOUSING ORDINANCE – TO BE PLACED ON JULY 5, 2004 AGENDA AS A SPECIAL ITEM
Ms. Cowell asked that an item be placed on this agenda for consideration of revisiting the Fair Housing ordinance of the City of Raleigh.
Ms. Cowell pointed out the Council had considered this issue in the past but did not get the Fair Housing Ordinance passed.  City Attorney McCormick pointed out the City of Raleigh does have a Fair Housing Ordinance.  He explained past actions on this issue and went over his 2002 memorandum pointing out the City’s Fair Housing Ordinance sets out a number of violations that the City can investigate and act on.  The next step would be retain certification and take over enforcement of the Fair Housing Ordinance.  He pointed out what took place when the City sought certification previously and pointed out to move further in the quest for certification would require the General Assembly granting additional authority.
Mr. Hunt expressed concern pointing out the Federal and State government can handle this situation.  The City of Raleigh is struggling to make ends meet and he does not see any need to take on additional tasks.  Mr. West read from the minutes when this issue was discussed pointing out he understands there are some other mechanisms but according to the minutes we do not have the staff to address those issues.  Ms. Cowell pointed out the reason she wanted the issue studied again is she would like information on whether the Fair Housing Ordinance is being enforced.  If we were certified for enforcement within the City what the budget impact would be and issues such as that.  City Attorney McCormick pointed out this the Fair Housing laws are being enforced, explaining the City itself was subject of a case.  He pointed out the laws definitely are being enforced; the question is, how long it takes to go through the process.  Mr. McCormick pointed out his 2002 memorandum talked about the staff in other cities.
Mr. Hunt pointed out he is a member of the property management profession and he can assure everyone the laws are being enforced.  That industry lives in the fear of the fair housing laws and talked about the fines that can be levied.  He feels that HUD is on top of this issue big time.  They have a local office and the laws are being enforced.  Mr. Regan agreed pointing out as a realtor he too lives in fear relative to violations of the Fair Housing Ordinance.  He questioned if part of this certification would be giving subpoena power to the Fair Housing Hearing Board expressing concern pointing out they are appointed people that probably do not have the training, expertise and the knowledge as to how to go about the issue.  Mr. West expressed concern that we are talking about living in fear of making sure people are being treated fairly.  He stated there is definitely discrimination in housing and he thinks the key to this discussion is whether the system we have in place is designed in such away that it addresses the problems.  He stated this issue should be put in Committee to have further discussions.  Ms. Taliaferro pointed out it is a new issue for her and she would need to have more information.  She stated her first thought however is that the City of Raleigh is having a very hard time finding people willing to serve on some boards and commissions and she is hesitant to enact another board or commission and give them such wide authorities as the Council may have a problem getting people to serve.  Mayor Meeker questioned what Committee the item should be referred to with Ms. Taliaferro pointing out she feels it is an issue about the law so it should go to Law and Public Safety.  Ms. Cowell moved the item be referred to Budget and Economic Development Committee.  Her motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker.  Mr. Isley made a substitute motion that the item be referred to Law and Public Safety Committee.  His substitute motion was seconded by Mr. Regan and put to a vote with Mr. Isley, Mr. Hunt, Ms. Taliaferro and Mr. Regan voting in the affirmative and the remainder of the Council voting in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion defeated.  
The original motion to refer the issue to Budget and Economic Development Committee was put to a vote which resulted in Mr. Meeker, Mr. West, Ms. Cowell and Ms. Crowder voting in the affirmative and Mr. Isley, Mr. Hunt, Ms. Taliaferro and Mr. Regan voting in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion defeated.
After brief discussion is was directed the item be placed on the July 5 agenda as special item.
PAYROLL - PROFESSIONAL DUES WITHHOLDING FOR POLICE AND FIRE – REFERRED TO LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE
At the June 1 Council meeting, Ms. Cowell pointed out an issue had come before the City Council previously relative to the professional dues check off request.  It was pointed out the item was pending in Law and Public Safety Committee.  At the request of Ms. Cowell, by consent, it was agreed to withdraw the item from the Law and Public Safety Committee and place it on this agenda for consideration.
Ms. Cowell moved that the Council authorize professional dues to be deducted by the City.  Her motion was seconded by Mr. Meeker.  Mayor Meeker pointed out other professional dues would be treated the same way but he feels we should have something in written form and written authorization from each employee for professional dues to be deducted through payroll.  Mr. Crowder stated he understands this would be entirely voluntary on the part of the employee.  Ms. Taliaferro stated that the officers and firefighters should be required to renew that authorization every year.  Mayor Meeker suggested the possibility of the Council getting a recommendation on how to deal with this issue that is a standard procedure.  
Mr. Isley stated he did not feel the Council was ready to vote on this today as there is no information from staff, cost involved, etc.  Ms. Cowell pointed out it has been a pending item for over two years and she feel some action should be taken.  Mr. Isley pointed out this item was withdrawn from Law and Public Safety Committee without his knowledge.  He stated he does not feel it should be voted on at the table today as the Council does not have recommendations from the City Manager or the Police or Fire Chief.  He feels it would be incredibly wrong to take a vote on the issue today.  Mr. Isley made a substitute motion that the item be returned to Law and Public Safety Committee for further discussion.  His substitute motion was seconded by Mr. Hunt.  Mayor Meeker expressed concern about the substitute motion, pointing out the item was put in to Law and Public Safety Committee at the first meeting of this Council and it has not even been discussed.  Some action should be taken on it.  
Mr. Hunt stated unless staff has changed its mind it is opposed to this payroll deduction.  City Manager Allen pointed out it is true that staff opposes this payroll deduction for professional dues.  He stated he could not support the practice.  We are talking about private organizations that do not provide a service to the City and he does not feel we should be using public funds which is what would be occurring to take payroll deductions for a private organization.  He stated if we do this for police and fire it would be hard to justify not doing payroll deduction for other things.  He stated criteria would have to be set up pointing out at this point there is good communications with these organizations.  He stated he understands their desire to have payroll deductions as it is easier to collect the fees and supports increases in membership.  He does not feel the City should be in that business.  Ms. Cowell stated for years this has been one of the top priorities of the police and fire organizations.  Hundreds of employees want this ability.  Mr. Regan pointed out he is a member of the Law and Public Safety Committee and he agrees we need to get an answer to these people.  He stated he could not support the issues but feels that it should be discussed and he would work to make sure it is discussed in Committee.  Mr. Crowder pointed out we are talking about a payroll deduction and he does not mind it going back to Committee but it is with the understanding it comes back at the next meeting.  Mr. West expressed concern about excluding other professional associations from having this ability.  How to proceed from this point was discussed and when the Law and Public Safety Committee could discuss the item and get a report back to Council was talked about.  It was pointed out there are a number of items in Law and Public Safety Committee that is requiring a lot of work and discussion and all seem to have top priority.  Mr. Regan stated he thought the Committee could get it back within at least 60 days.  Ms. Taliaferro pointed out she did not realize what was occurring when the item was removed from the Committee.  She stated we need to have a fair and public process so she has no problem with it going back to Committee as long as it does not remain their forever.  She stated she is a public employee and she has the ability for dues to be taken out of her paycheck and she appreciates that and understands the issue.  Mr. Isley stated the Committee would take it up as soon as possible; again pointing out the Committee is in the midst of discussion on false alarms and neighborhood preservation.  He stated he feels the Committee is doing a good job as all of the items in Law and Public Safety Committee have a 2003 or later date.  Mayor Meeker pointed out this Council came on in 2003 with Mr. Isley pointing out the Budget and Economic Development Committee has some items pending with a 2000 date.  The substitute motion to refer the issue to Law and Public Safety Committee was put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Ms. Cowell, Mayor Meeker and Mr. Crowder.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE CITY MANAGER
TRIANGLE TRANSIT AUTHORITY - CITY STREET IMPACTS – VARIOUS ACTIONS TAKEN
The Triangle Transit Authority (TTA) is working to finalize plans for the construction of the first phase of their regional rail project.  One major project impact involves the Pullen Road Bridge, which must be lengthened in order to accommodate the additional tracks that TTA will construct.  Since Pullen Road is a City street and modification to the bridge will require the City’s approval, TTA will present its preferred design for modifying the bridge and its plans for traffic detours and mitigating the construction impacts.

TTA would also like Council to consider permanently changing the one-way traffic pattern on Jones Street and Lane Street to two-way operation between Dawson Street and Harrington Street.  This change will be necessary in the short term to serve adjacent properties in this area due to street closures on Harrington Street associated with track construction.  This change is consistent with the long-term plans to convert these streets to two-way operation per the City’s Downtown Livable Streets initiative.
City Manager Allen briefly explained the proposal pointing out Pullen Park will be extremely impacted and Triangle Transit Authority has worked hard to mitigate the impact.
Mayor Meeker pointed out members of his law firm work with TTA but he is not directly involved.  The comments were received.

Don Cornell, Triangle Transit Authority, pointed out Council members had received information in their agenda packet relative to the need to convert Lane Street and Jones Street to two-way traffic between Dawson Street and Harrington Street.  The request also includes temporarily closing Pullen Road in order to do work on the Pullen Road bridge.  He made a short PowerPoint presentation and stated he would be glad to answer questions.  Mayor Meeker asked about the two-waying of Lane and Jones Street and questioned if that could be extended so the two-way pair goes all the way that is pick up the last block or two.  It was pointed out by the representatives of TTA that they had proposed this as a temporary measure during construction.  Ms. Taliaferro questioned if there will be any budget impact for the City on either issue.  City Manager Allen pointed out as far as the temporary closing of Pullen and the two-way of Lane and Jones between Dawson and Hargett Streets there would be no fiscal impact; however, with the extension of the two way pair there could be cost to the City.  Ms. Taliaferro stated whatever action we do we should explore in a separate issue, that is the two-way proposed by TTA and the cost and the extension as suggested by the Mayor.  Mr. Crowder moved approval of the two-way of Lane and Jones during construction as requested be approved and refer the possible extension of that two-way to Administration.  His motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
Mr. Crowder pointed out the actions being requested by TTA will be putting more traffic in the community and questioned if TTA has come up with ways to address or alleviate those concerns and referred to traffic calming.  Mr. Cornell pointed out traffic is like water it follows a path of least resistance.  He pointed out prior to TTA knowing about the City of Raleigh traffic calming plan they had done some preliminary analysis.  They did not come up with a design but they did come up with some concepts, laundry list, etc.  He stated TTA would be willing to share 50/50 in the traffic calming on Ashe Avenue and Pullen up to a maximum of $100,000 that is they would be willing to put in up to $50,000.  He pointed out the other issue relates to timing.  They are looking at moving forward in the summer of 2005 and have received some information from NCSU that they may want to piggy-back on this project with some work of their own.  Mr. Hunt questioned if the City was planning to spend money on Ashe Avenue traffic calming with it being pointed out it is at the top of the list.  Mr. Crowder moved that the City accept TTA’s officer of paying 50 percent of the traffic calming activities for Ashe Avenue.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Cowell and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
WOOTEN MEADOWS – CASL – DIRECTION GIVEN
As a follow up to City Council action on May 18, 2004, discussions with CASL Executive Director and staff to determine the feasibility of relocating them out of Wooten Meadows have been held.  Feedback is needed as to Council’s willingness to move in the directions suggested as a solution. CASL staff indicates a similar need to have concurrence from their Board (they have not polled their board) since this is a Council initiative to terminate the agreement.
Council Members received the following memo in their agenda packet.

As a follow up to Council action May 18, 2004, discussions with CASL Executive Director and his staff to determine feasibility of relocating them out of Wooten Meadows have been held.

We have reduced many of the issues through these discussions, and this is what we are reviewing at this time:
1. July 1, 2004 City notifies CASL that we are giving notice of termination as required under terms of existing contract and CASL agrees to accept termination at end of fall season 2004.  City allows CASL to erect divider fencing to break up large field expanse and divide fields into smaller practice spaces for the fall season 2004.  We all believe this physical change can reduce the likelihood of the site being used by poachers looking for adult field space.  Buffer would not be replanted by CASL and may be unnecessary if site is converted to another use.
2. City allows CASL to divide existing soccer space at Kiwanis Park into small practice areas.  City may need to install a gravel parking area to relieve parking demand subject to code/permitting that may be required. This is a change in use and will generate additional issues.

3. CASL acknowledges some excess time/space capacity currently at existing sites they use that are available through numerous relationships they have throughout the county, and will maximize utilization and adjust field assignment accordingly at ALL fields to provide added relief resulting from loss of Wooten site.
4. Longer term, City will agree to examine feasibility for providing additional soil, as a result of City project construction, at the Dix site currently leased from the State (old dump), which could then be utilized by CASL to expand the facilities at this site, creating added capacity and the potential to provide opportunity for one day / week use by non CASL soccer interests.  This expansion potentially could relieve short and long term demand for added practice/game space.  (Perhaps some portion of the soil from proposed new Civic Center construction could be made available).
Mayor Meeker moved that Administration be authorized to proceed as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Cowell and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Ms. Taliaferro who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.

FAYETTEVILLE STREET - WIRELESS INTERNET SERVICE – CONTRACT WITH WINDCHANNEL COMMUNICATIONS - APPROVED
During the Fayetteville Street Renaissance planning, it was noted that it would be desirable to establish a wireless internet system along the Fayetteville Street corridor from the Capitol to the Convention Center.  Information Technology staff have pursued this idea, and have developed a plan with WindChannel Communications to provide wireless internet service along the street with no underground infrastructure.  WindChannel is a Raleigh-based company with their offices on Fayetteville Street.  They can provide the service for a minimal capital investment of approximately $3,500 and an ongoing service fee of $295 per month.  Funding for the up-front cost of this project in FY 2004 comes from the Economic Development Fund (Fund 110), and a line item of $4,500 has been included in the proposed FY 2005 budget to support the monthly service fee.  This service can begin right away and can also be utilized during construction of Fayetteville Street and the Convention Center by the various contractors at work on both of these construction projects, as well as by the general public.  This is an increasingly popular service that has been implemented in several other cities, including Winston-Salem.  It is an important part of the continued marketing effort for the Fayetteville Street Renaissance.

Recommendation:  Authorization to complete contract with WindChannel Communications for Fayetteville Street wireless internet service, and to appropriate resources from the Economic Development fund (Account # 110-2510-72432-301).
Mayor Meeker questioned how the average person would utilize this service with City Manager Allen explaining anyone with a laptop, phone or other technological device that has the capabilities could use the wireless internet from the locations on Fayetteville Street.  Ms. Hunt questioned if there is language in the contract that stipulates the power medium.  He questioned if the reception is not good if the City would have to pay for the service.  
Ashraf Malik pointed out they are looking at serving the needs of about 100 people being able to be logged on concurrently.  Mr. Hunt talked about a similar activity he was involved with in Wilmington and the reception was very very poor and there is an ongoing battle to get out of the contract.  How the contract was written and whether the City could break the contract or not be liable if the service is not good was talked about.  City Attorney McCormick pointed out the contract has a 60 day termination clause.  Mr. Crowder moved approval as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker and put to a roll call vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Regan who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE ARTS COMMISSION

ARTS COMMISSION TWO YEAR STRATEGIC PLAN – REFERRED TO BUDGET AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
During the past year, the City of Raleigh Arts Commission formulated a plan to maintain a thriving cultural climate in Raleigh, to help create a presence for our region, foster diversity, and attract and retain businesses and employees through the arts.  Elizabeth Grimes-Droessler, a representative of the Arts Commission, and Linda Leake, president of Change by Leake and the consultant working with the Arts Commission, will present the Arts Commission’s two-year strategic plan, “Acting on Our Future” to City Council.

Recommendation:  Accept the plan and approve action items.
Melinda Baran pointed out over the last 6 years she feels the Arts Commission has been very clear in demonstrating that Arts is good business.  She talked about the successes of the street painting program, Red Wolf Ramble, acquiring public art and generally talked about the strengths of the arts community.  She pointed out the ordinance establishing the Arts Commission indicates the Commission will provide the Council with an ongoing comprehensive plan.  She pointed out the group has developed a strategic plan and explained the process in developing the plan including public involvement.  She pointed out they identified six key result areas on which to focus time, money and energy in developing the arts in the City of Raleigh.  She went over the key areas including organization development, downtown cultural initiative, grants, public policy and economic development, public relations/marketing and public art.  She talked about these areas and their action plan.
Mayor Meeker pointed out it is a significant plan and he feels that the Council should spend some time looking at the issue; therefore moved that the item be referred to Budget and Economic Development Committee for review hopefully in two weeks.  His motion was seconded by Mr. Crowder and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE RALEIGH BUSINESS AND TECHNOLOGY CENTER
RALEIGH BUSINESS AND TECHNOLOGY CENTER – UPDATE - RECEIVED
Presnell Robinson expressed appreciation to the City Council for the commitment and solidarity given to their Board And Center.  He stated the center has been operating in a business manner and all of the programs are working well.  Eighteen of the 20 pacesetter programs are working extremely well.  He stated the program had brought access and participation and the curriculum is right on target.  At some time everyone wants to become a small business person.  He pointed out the Center is taking men and women and turning them into productive business people.  He explained the incubator was established in 2000 through the support and cooperation of the Raleigh City Council.  They have the virtual incubator which the City has supported.  He pointed out they do not get support for the Business and Technology Center but do for the virtual incubator.  He expressed appreciation to the City for all of their input and support.  He introduced the new Executive Director Bob Robinson who went over the success of the various programs and groups that have been involved.  He gave information on program completion, business operations, budgets, technology, business plan, sales and procurement, etc.  He gave a summary of the outcome and the number of people involved.
Mayor Meeker talked about the Thursday night events at the Business and Technology Center pointing out he would invite City Council members to attend at least one of those events and see the energy and commitment.  Mr. West talked about the Center being one of the initiatives of the Southeast Raleigh Assembly.  He thinks this program helps identify problems and makes a great difference in people’s lives and he looks forward to the continued work.
REQUEST AND PETITION OF CITIZENS
FAYETTEVILLE STREET DESIGN – COMMENTS RECEIVED
Andrew Leager, 2605 Vanderbilt Avenue, asked the Council to reconsider the action it had taken on Fayetteville Street design.  He pointed out scores of people have expressed concerns to him about the design.  He made an analogy of the 1995 decision of Coca-Cola Bottling Company to come out with a new coke.  He stated no one liked it and it was done away with immediately.  He stated however you could not do that with Fayetteville Street if people don’t like it.  The design approved by the Council would give Raleigh a new Fayetteville Street that is trendy and high tech but he feels we need a noble historic street.  He stated he objects to the entire assumption that we can sweeten the street by adding amenities.  He talked about decisions of the past when the City Council installed the mall and “corked up” Fayetteville Street with the convention center, now we are doing away with that.  He stated he had heard comparisons about the new Fayetteville Street to Glenwood Avenue but he does not feel that is a fair comparison.  No other street will ever have the State Capitol at one end and Memorial Auditorium at the other.  He stated he realizes there is little wiggle room left.  He called on Council to keep discussion open and talked about money spent on designs is not wasted if it helps determine what is best for the City.  The comments were received.

STORMWATER – 3514 KEATS PLACE – REFERRED TO ADMINISTRATION
Douglas Wickham, 3514 Keats Place, was at the meeting to request stormwater fee assistance.  City Manager Allen pointed out staff has been working on this issue with Mr. Wickham.  He stated the property owner has retained an engineer to design improvements and have the Wickham’s have requested the City to pay for the portion of the pipe work located in the street right-of-way which is estimated at $6,760.  He pointed out a majority of this project does not qualify for City assistance and they retained an engineer to come up with a plan to address the problem which is on private property.  He stated Administration would recommend the City reimburse the property owner for the portion of the system installed in the street right-of-way not to exceed $6,760 once the drainage system is installed by the private contractor according to the approved construction drawings/city standards and accepted by the City.  Mr. Isley moved the item be referred to Administration to address the problem as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
MATTERS SCHEDULED FOR PUBLIC HEARING
UNFIT BUILDING – 1300 SOUTH EAST STREET – HEARING – ORDINANCE ADOPTED
This was a hearing to consider adopting and Ordinance authorizing the demolition of the unfit building at 1300 S. East Street pursuant to provisions of Section 10-6127(d) of the City Code if repairs necessary to render the dwelling fit for human habitation are not completed within ninety (90) days.  The property is in the name of Bossie McNeil Realty LLC, Tax ID 0046450.  The Mayor opened the hearing.  No one asked to be heard, thus the hearing was closed.  Mr. West moved adoption of the ordinance as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Ordinance 654.
PUBLIC NUISANCE COST CONFIRMATION – VARIOUS LOCATIONS – HEARING – RESOLUTION ADOPTED
This was a hearing to consider the adoption of a resolution confirming the charges for the abatement of public nuisances as a lien against the property as listed below:
	LOCATION
	PROPERTY OWNER
	TAX ID NO.
	ABATEMENT

	3112 Beane Drive
	Milton Forte
	0096279
	$1,542.00

	715 South Boylan Avenue
	R.J. & Agnes Royster
	0061563
	$348.00

	3628 Capital Boulevard
	Annie E. Cooper & William F. Beal, Jr., Trustee
	0092229
	$348.00

	300 Colleton Road
	Fred Junior & Essie Ree Banks
	0072030
	$305.00


	1600 Cross Street
	Johnson & Hamill Properties LLC
	0006803
	$252.00

	116 Fisher Street
	Vanco Jones
	0025250
	$451.00

	914 South Person Street
	Henry A. & Shirley A. Goodson
	0022614
	$252.00

	1301 South Person Street
	Albert S. Mitchiner, Heirs c/o William J. Mitchiner
	0047912
	$299.00

	3717 Summer Place
	John D. Dunvivant, III
	0098748
	$316.00

	218 South Swain Street
	Herbert C. Mitchiner, Jr.
	0047921
	$348.00

	2605 Valley Woods Court
	Keith & Margie Davis Cochrane
	0116267
	$495.00


Mayor Meeker pointed out 914 S. Person Street, Henry A. & Shirley A. Goodson should be withdrawn as the charges have been paid.  The Mayor opened the hearing on each of the other locations.  No one asked to be heard, thus the hearing was closed.  Mr. Crowder moved adoption of a resolution confirming charges as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Mr. West and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Resolution 110.
US PATRIOT ACT – PROPOSED RESOLUTION – HEARING – AMENDED RESOLUTION ADOPTED
This was hearing to receive public comment including input from the US Attorney and North Carolina Attorney General’s Office concerning a proposed resolution drafted by the Human Relations Commission concerning the US Patriot Act.
VERBATIM
Mayor Meeker:  Now we are on to Item #3 and we have rules we set on this two weeks ago.  It’s a hearing to receive public comment, including input from the U.S. Attorney and the North Carolina Attorney General’s Office, concerning a proposed resolution drafted by the Human Relations Commission concerning the U.S. Patriot Act.  Three will be fifteen minutes for each side to comment on this with those in favor of the resolution going first.  The time of comments by the U.S. Attorney or the North Carolina Attorney’s Office will not count on either side of that.

Is there anyone here from the U. S. Attorney’s Office for the North Carolina Attorney General’s Office to comment on this?

Mr. McCormick:  Mr. Mayor, the North Carolina Attorney General’s Office was contacted and indicated since this was a Federal matter they would decline the opportunity to come.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, there is a gentleman here.  Are you here from the Attorney’s Office?  If you could please come forward and give your name and address and offer whatever comments that you will be helpful.

Mr. Candelmo:  Your honor, before I begin, am I to understand the format will be 15 minutes for each side?

Mayor Meeker:  That’s right, but your time does not count for either side so your time is (inaudible).

Mr. Candelmo:  My name is James Candelmo.  I am the Anti-Terrorism Advisory Counsel Coordinator for the United States Department of Justice, Eastern District of North Carolina, and a component of the Department of Justice.  My office is at 310 New Bern Avenue in the Federal Building in Downtown Raleigh.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, do you have comments on this resolution that has been proposed or are you just here to answer questions?

Mr. Candelmo:  No, I have comments.  I believe that the people that were for the resolution were to go first.

Mayor Meeker:  Well, you and the U. S. Attorney, you and the Attorney General’s Office are allowed to comment and have questions asked first, and then those who are for or against will comment second.  But you are given precedence to go first.  And if you want to defer your comments, I guess you can do that, but would like….
Mr. Candelmo:  I would reserve my time you honor, to hear from the people that are for the resolution.

Mayor Meeker:  Alright, well let me ask a question so that we can get some facts on the table.  First, are you able to tell us whether the provisions of the Patriot Act have been used here in Raleigh?  Are you allowed to say that?

Mr. Candelmo:  Ah, I can verify to you that at least on one circumstance, a provision of the U.S. Patriot Act was used in an investigation here in Raleigh, North Carolina.

Mayor Meeker:  That’s right, just one incident over the last, over 2 years or so, okay.

Mr. Candelmo:  At least one.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, at last one, okay.  Ah, well, yeah, I am only trying to ask questions that I am allowed to ask and secondly can you tell us what kinds of kinds of past....
Mr. Candelmo:  You can ask any question, you honor, I am only the one who is limited.

Mayor Meeker:

Okay, well stay within your limits.  Can you tell me what kinds of powers have been used?

Mr. Candelmo:  Certainly, you honor.  Ah, the U.S.A. Patriot Act has a provision which it prefers or allows for a nationwide search warrant.  A search warrant is a means by which law enforcement is enabled to obtain property, search it and maintain it, if it’s valuable evidence.  Prior to the U.S.A. Patriot Act, the search warrant needed to be obtained in the district for which the property existed.  This became extremely cumbersome and onerous in the internet age since one of the objects for search warrants can be materials that are housed in electronic data bases.  An example that you may understand is America Online, Lycos, any of the other internet service providers would maintain potential email.  What happened, not only in terrorism cases, but in other cases but this is an exception only for terrorism that a search warrant by the same level of judicial supervision that would be in that district, northern Virginia or Eastern District of Virginia, where America Online would be, can be obtained here in this district or in any other district.  The standards to obtain the search warrant remain the same.  The level of judicial supervision to obtain the search warrant remains the same.  What we believe this enabled was the case agent was working on the item was available to be the affined for the affidavit and give meaningful information and provide responses to the bench for their requests.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, now other than this nationwide warrant which is used one or more times, are there any other power used here in the City of Raleigh?
Mr. Candelmo:  I am not at liberty to disclose that.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, are there other questions anyone has to ask the Council?

Mr. Isley:  Ah, I would like to get on record, ah….Mr. Candelmo…what participation do you have at the Human Relations Commission and just if you could give us a brief update as to how you got involved in that and what if any information they received from you and subsequent discussions you had with that commission.

Mr. Candelmo:  We were first notified informally of the existence in this resolution.  And then it was currently before, I believe it was the Human Relations Subcommittee of this Council.  We attended a meeting.  The resolution had, ah, I believe had already been presented to this council and at that time there was no debate or discussion in regards.  The Human Relations Subcommittee chaired by Chairman Weeks, created a working group, I believe, and the working group was in charge of reviewing the resolution and making any changes.  The working group did not meet that night and then I was notified at a future time when the working group met.  I attended the working group which was one member of the Human Relations Subcommittee and with myself along with representatives of the ACLU and the coalition that is sponsoring this resolution discussed for I think approximately two and a half hours the resolution at hand.  That was the only opportunity that we have had for meaningful input in regards to the resolution that is before you.  At no time have I made, nor has the Department of Justice been offered and allowed to make, a presentation in regards to this resolution that is before you.  We have provided presentations in paper form, and we were just merely there to answer questions.  We then attended the third and I believe the only other opportunity for input on the Human Relations Committee, and that is when the subcommittee, the working group, I apologize, made its resolution to the subcommittee and then the subcommittee after extremely brief discussion adopted the resolution that is before you.

Mr. Isley:  Mr. Candelmo are you aware if any of the members of the subcommittee or Human Relations Commission read the Patriot Act?

Mr. Candelmo:  I am not aware of that at all.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, additional questions?  Mr. Hunt?

Mr. Hunt:  Yes, I have a point of clarification; let me ask you the nut of the Patriot Act,  ah, does that basically give law enforcement authorities the same rights to investigate terrorism as they do as they already have against the drug industry.

Mr. Candelmo:  Drug trafficking, espionage, organized crime, these are all constitutionally, which have been constitutionally challenged and approved law enforcement techniques; long approved law enforcement techniques, which we are now able to use on terrorism.

Mr. Hunt:  Right, that is question No. 1.  And question No. 2, it says the Patriot Act also allows more communication between various law enforcement authorities which maybe we did not have before.

Mr. Candelmo:  Exactly.  Let me ah, let me try to explain that.  Ah, prior to coming to the eastern district of North Carolina, I was part of the Department of Justice’s internal security section.  As such I was one of a hand full of prosecutors who investigated and prosecuted espionage throughout the country.  Due to the nature of the investigative techniques, that we had at our disposal, (inaudible) and to safeguard the statute a wall was built in between intelligence gatherers and law enforcement officials.  The right hand did not know what the left hand was doing.  Ah, due to these techniques and the establishment of the wall.  Through the 9/11 hearings, I am sure many of you have heard of this, but the wall was a major obstacle in sharing of information.  Not put too fine point on it, I think it is summarized very carefully here.  An FBI agent, intelligence agent on the west coast was trying to find two men on a watch list, a watch list is an interest of people that we know are engaged in terrorist activity, had realized that these two men have entered the country.  He tried to get help from the Criminal Investigative side of the FBI, but Headquarters intervened and said that he was not allowed due to the wall.  That happened in August of 2001.  The two men he was looking for were named Khaleed Al Midar and Nawar Al Hazim.  A few weeks later on September 11 they were at the controls of the airplane that struck the Pentagon.  Had the wall not been there, the wall that the Patriot Act tears down, that may have been our best chance at stopping the travesty at least in regards to the Pentagon on September 11, 2001.

Mr. West:  Mr. Mayor.

Mayor Meeker:  Mr. West.

Mr. West:  I want to make sure that I understood something that you said.  I…did you say that you have the same identical power under the Patriot Act that you have with the drugs, organized crime, espionage it’s not broader in any way?  It’s…I thought…what I thought in response to Mr. Hunt’s question, I want to make sure that I understand there…I mean, I guess my question is if the powers are the same and they are not broader than why is there such a controversy here.

Mr. Candelmo:  That’s my line (laughter) and I’ll let you say it.

Mr. West:  I mean, I’m asking a very simple question.  (Inaudible)  Are…there are no changes that’s been…when your operating with these other issues is that what I’m hearing you say?

Mr. Candelmo:  Councilman West, I think you asked a good question and one that deserves clarification and I want to be precise in answering this.  Law enforcement investigative techniques, one size does not fit all.  Certain techniques which are extremely affective in addressing drug cartels and organized crime may not be as affective in terrorism.  Certain techniques which are extremely affective when investigating the agent of a foreign power may not be nearly as affective when investigating a drug trafficker.  What I am telling you for the great part while the techniques which are available for us to investigate espionage may not be available to investigate organized crime.  Or a technique which is available to us to investigate organized crime may not be desirable to investigate terrorism.  I’m telling you tools from each of those toolboxes for the great partaking, but they are separate toolboxes, partaking and they are applied in the war on terror.  I hope I’ve clarified that.  It’s not the same techniques used for each crime.

Mr. West:  Well, I just wanted to make sure.  I just have one final question Mr. Mayor.  It seems as though, I’m not expert in this area, I just try to use my common sense every now and then.  But…the issue of checks and balances.  This seems to be kind of an overriding and an under-girding issue, you with the Attorney General’s office I’m assuming that you’re with the Department of Justice or at least kinda somehow you’re affiliated, you know, under the same organizational structure.  What are the checks and balances in terms of your authority, I guess, to invade people’s constitutional rights?  Do you, do you have to report, account to, to anybody…Congress?  Uh, I’m just trying to get a feel for how blanket…this act may be.

Mr. Candelmo:  For the most sensitive portions of the Patriot Act, the ones that, the use of the foreign intelligence, surveillance act, techniques, the detention of individuals, the Attorney General by the language of the act itself is mandated to report on the usage of these techniques to Congress every six months.  More importantly there is a sunset provision built into the act in regards to most…to what you would view as the most controversial aspects of the act where those provisions disappear or go away unless there is further congressional action.  The question in regards to checks and balances between the Executive and the Legislative it is addressed that way.  The…but there are three branches of government, and the checks and balances between the Executive which I’m a part of, and the bench, the Judiciary, is possibly the most effective and the one that we would encounter on a day-to-day basis.  If we wish to subpoena Grand Jury records, something that my office does every single day of the week through the Grand Jury, our review of…by district judge would be after the issuance, if at all, and only upon motion of the aggrieved party.  In the case of the implementation of the Patriot Act, we need to go to the federal judge, the appropriate federal judge, beforehand to get records in an investigation in regards to the Grand Jury the standard is an extremely low one.  The Grand Jury is entitled to every man’s evidence and it would just be relevant to a criminal investigation.  In regards to the most sensitive aspects of the Patriot Act and techniques there must be probable cause to believe that the target is a foreign nation, foreign government, or the agent of a foreign government and that evidence will be related also.  So the standard is higher than the traditional Grand Jury.  The difference is we can get it quicker and we are able to preserve the integrity of the investigation by not alerting our targets longer.  And as you can imagine in the fields of terrorism, espionage, and even organized crime, for an effective investigation to occur we need to be able to preserve the integrity of that investigation until we are ready to bring charges or to destruct.

Ms. Taliaferro:  Mr. Mayor.
Mayor Meeker:  Ms. Taliaferro.

Ms. Taliaferro:  You referred to a sunset date for some of these provisions.  What…what is that date?

Mr. Candelmo:  December 31st, 2005.

Ms. Cowell:  Mr. Mayor.

Mayor Meeker:  Ms. Cowell.

Ms. Cowell:  If I would ask you, we’ve talked in general about the abilities that you have to research people.  We have two items here:  1) A-E and 2) A-E that talk about some of the specific provisions of the Patriot Act.  And I guess my question to you is do you find these statements to be accurate?  That the…1B for example, that eliminates judicial supervision of telephone and internet surveillance.  Uh, you know, 1D that it grants the FBI broad access to individual medical, mental health, financial, employment and educational records without having to show evidence of a crime and without a court order and than the most infamous, I guess, that is in the public realm permits the FBI to track individual book borrowing in libraries and book purchases and video rentals in stores and makes it a crime for librarians and vendors to reveal their knowledge.  Do you consider this to be accurate?

Mr. Candelmo:  Councilor Cowell, I would, I’m as curious as you are as to the proponent of the resolution’s view on those matters.

Taliaferro:  Uh-huh.

Mr. Candelmo:  And that is the precise reason that I’ve asked to reserve my comments until…to hear from the proponents of the resolution.  I will gladly answer that and I have planned to answer it in my prepared remarks for this Council and to beg your indulgence in that remark I would be asked to do that.  And if I’m not able to do that I will gladly entertain that question at the end of my remarks if I may do so.

Ms. Taliaferro:  So, your saying you’re not clear on what their stamp is on these and therefore, you can’t tell me if you think they are accurate?

Mr. Candelmo:  I’m a lawyer.  (Background laughter).  I make my living with words.

Ms. Taliaferro:  Uh-huh.

Mr. Candelmo:  I want to know what these words mean.  And I think you do too.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, additional questions or comments?

Mr. Isley:  I do.

Mayor Meeker:  Mr. Isley.

Mr. Isley:  Does the Patriot Act affect any country other than the United States as to what…what its scope is…is it limited to just the United States?

Mr. Candelmo:  When you ask that question does it effect we’ll give it small “e” effect…

Mr. Isley:  Yes.

Mr. Candelmo:  Is…is the legislation while, it may affect diplomatic relations with countries that we learn some interesting things about through use of these provisions, I’m sure the affects are of a relationship with them.  However, the provisions in the act are specifically addressed towards law enforcement investigations occurring in the United States and the ability to use those techniques within the United States.

Mr. Isley:  Okay, as a follow-up to that, uh, a lot of e-mail that I have been receiving indicates that this somehow allows things to go on at Guantanamo Bay, in Iraq in the prison system, can you address that concern that I’ve been hearing or that…

Mr. Candelmo:  I would, it is a…it’s the same concern that, that I hear as I travel through the district and get an opportunity to sit and talk with people like you in regards to the criticisms about the act.  And I’ll again ask that question be best answered by proponents of the resolution because I think through a rudimentary examination of the act, by them or the Human Rights Subcommittee, they would understand that simply does not exist in the act.

Mr. Candelmo:  Mr. Mayor, I guess, I have one question.  I’m just an architect but I’ve been but I do know what is, is and…what sex means and I…but I would like to, going back to Ms. Cowell’s, do you, can you state that none of these civil liberties are being violated?

Mr. Candelmo:  Yes, I can state that the civil liberties, articulated in each and every one of those, are not being violated.  In fact when Senator Feinstein requested the ACLU to please present her with a documented case of a breach of civil liberties with any particularity they were unable to do so.

Mr. Meeker:  Okay, okay.  Additional comment’s Mr. Regan.

Mr. Regan:  Yea, I just, I just, I, I was one of the people who voted to have this hearing because I didn’t know the details of the act and people had made some serious allegations that parts or many parts of the Patriot Act violated parts of the constitution or the amendments thereof or the United States Constitution.  Do you…and then I, then I, I did some research and found out that this thing passed in the Senate by 98-1.

Mr. Candelmo:  One not voting.

Mr. Regan:  One not voting.  Okay, so one abstention.  So, either the…it just occurred to me those Senators didn’t read it or don’t know the Constitution or perhaps it doesn’t violate the Constitution.  Can you tell me for sure does this…is there anything in this act that violates the Constitution or the amendments thereof?

Mr. Candelmo:  I believe, uh, that this act is constitutional and I believe that this act uses constitutionally accepted law enforcement techniques in regards to that.  The proper place to challenge the constitutionality of this act or any act is in a court of law.  But it is my position and it is the Department of Justice’s position that…in addition to being invaluable law enforcement tool this is also a constitutionally acceptable tool.

Mr. Regan:  As a follow-up question.  Who…who is the one who voted against it and the one who abstained?  Do you know?

Mr. Candelmo:  I’ll have to look that up.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay additional questions before we start the hearing?  

Mr. Isley:  I would make a comment.  
Mayor Meeker:  Mr. Isley

Mr. Isley:  My research, I’ve determined that…our local representatives in Congress, Bob Ethridge, David Price, John Edwards and Jessie Helms all voted for this.  Uh, so our local delegations supported this fully.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, additional questions for the US Attorney?  Okay, we’ll get back to you in just a minute.  We are now going to go ahead and open the hearing and as I said our time is 15 minutes for each side.  I’ve received an e-mail saying that Linda Gettier, Cy King and Jennifer Ruttinger are wanting to speak.  Is there anyone else who wants to speak or are the three of you agree to be the proponents?  There is a fourth hand in the back.  Anyone else?  Okay, five, six, well, okay, let me, limit it to about three minutes each then.  Okay, so each person that wants to speak please come down to the front and we will keep the total time to about 15 minutes.  I do request the people abide by those time limits.  Good afternoon please you’re your name and address and go from there.

Ms. Gettier:  My name is Linda Gettier.  My address is 3317 Horseshoe Bend in Raleigh, North Carolina 27613.  I’m here serving as a spokesperson for the coalition for Raleigh Patriot Resolution and I’m the President currently of the Wake County Chapter of the ACLU.  But I do want the Council to know and understand that this is not just a resolution requested by the ACLU.  And if you would grant me a moment I would like to mention the names and the Coalition here.  It’s broadly supported by nonpartisan organizations here in the Raleigh area.  And they include the American Civil Liberties Union of Wake County, the American Civil Liberties Union of North Carolina, American Association of University Women of Raleigh and Wake County, Amnesty International of Raleigh and Amnesty International the Student Chapter at NC State, the Coalition for Peace with Justice, the Common Sense Foundation, the Community United Church of Christ-Social Justice Ministries, the Computer Professionals for Social Responsibility, Democracy North Carolina, El Pueblo, Friends of Wake County Public Library, the Latin-American Resource Center, the Muslim American Public Affairs Council, the National Association of Social Workers the North Carolina Chapter, the North Carolina Association of Women Attorneys, the North Carolina Chapter of the National Lawyers Guild, the North Carolina Justice and Community Development Center, the North Carolina Peace Action Group, the North Carolina Peace Action Education Fund, the North Carolina State AFL-CIO, the North Raleigh United Church, People of Faith Against the Death Penalty the Wake County Chapter, Pullen Memorial Baptist Church-Peace and Justice Mission Group, Raleigh International Organization of Women, the United Universalist Fellowship of Raleigh, the Unitarian Universal Fellowship of Raleigh Social Action Committee and the United Nations Association the Wake County Chapter A and in addition there is a dozen or so individuals who have signed on to this request on an individual bases who we would suggest are representing positions of expertise including Dr. Julius Chambers the former Chancellor of the North Carolina Central University, Theresa Neumann the Associate Dean of Academic Affairs and at Duke Law School, Gene Nichol the Dean and Doctor Craige Professor of Law, UNC Law School, Mary Watson Nooe former City Councilor and I could go on.  But it’s professional librarians and positions of leadership, churches, church leaders.  And we cannot take this to court but we can come as a coalition to the City Council to request City Council to review the Patriot Act and the executive orders that are listed in the resolution.  We are concerned about this.  We support the government’s efforts to protect the public from terrorist attacks, attack but calls for the government to do so in a rational and deliberative fashion to ensure that new security measures enhance public safety without creating conflicts with constitutional rights and freedoms.  Certain provisions of the Patriot Act and executive orders adopted since September of 2001 do erode fundamental civil liberties and the checks and balances of powers established by the U.S. Constitution.  These have created a considerable national outcry from law and justice organizations, public interest and policy organizations, and civil liberty groups.  Analysis of the Patriot Act by most of these organizations consistently identify conflicts in the Constitution and the Bill of Rights, particularly the first, the fourth, the fifth, sixth, eight and the fourteenth amendment.  And our concern is doubled by the current secrecy in the context with which the Patriot Act is existing in these years following 9/11.  We are concerned and disturbed that the Federal Government is continually seeking to expand the new powers of the Patriot Act and eliminate the sunset provisions while refusing to adequately answer inquires about how the emergency powers are being used.  We are alarmed to continually read articles about secret roundups with secret detentions, secret hearings and secret courts, and secret evidence being used, or in many cases reports that there is lack of evidence against people who have been detained or imprisoned, uh, you know, for up to two years now without no access to attorneys.  We have requested that Raleigh City Council review the Patriot Act and as you’ve said we’ve brought before you and the resolution and approve it so that we can request Congress to revise these.  We have been involved with Human Relations Commission and we do support their revisions.  We feel like if the City Council would adopt a resolution as they have revised it, it would be consistent with our concerns and those raised by the North Carolina Academy of Trial Lawyers as well as the North Carolina Council of Churches.  And if you don’t mind those that are here in support of the resolution to stand just a moment.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, well thank you for being here.  Okay, who would like to speak next?

Mr. Isley:  Mr. Mayor, I would like to ask of those who just stood up stand up if you read the Patriot Act.  This whole document, right here?

Man in the Audience:  Not the flyers?

Mr. Isley:  Right here.
Mayor Upchurch:  Okay, let’s go ahead and get on with the hearing here.  Thank you Mr. Isley.  Okay, who is the next speaker?  Mr. King?  Just go ahead.

Mr. King:  My name is Cy King and I reside at 409 Yarmouth Road here in Raleigh and today I’m representing the Wake County Chapter of the United Nations Association; one of the sponsors of the resolution favoring revisions to the hastily adopted USA Patriot Act.  As an advocate for the United Nations we’ve worked for public support for U.S. engagement in the UN and the work that it does in protecting human rights, shaping global response to terrorists, peace keeping among other things.  To these ends we sponsor a variety of educational lectures and programs.  A couple of things that we do, have done for years, we sponsor a public reading of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights on the Court House steps.  We also sponsor a reading of the Bill of Rights along with other groups in the Capital Rotunda and we are so grateful for the rights of these two documents guarantee all of us.  Our concern and our reason for being here today is that we fear that the Patriot Act could be used to abridge some of the liberties and rights that we all enjoy.  Now some have said that it is inappropriate for the Council to support a resolution regarding a congressional statute or a national issue.  My own thought is that it is always appropriate for the Council to concern itself with matters that affect the welfare and well being of the citizens of Raleigh and that is the matter we are concerned about with the Patriot Act.  There have been other of national and international nature other matters that the Council has addressed.  I was present at a very long, long and exciting Council meeting in the 1980’s, uh, when the Council adopted an ordinance mandating that the City Manager petition the President of the United States to communicate with the head of the Soviet Union to try to bring about a nuclear freeze, reduction in nuclear weapons and the, uh, this was adopted by this Council, not this Council but another Council, and the City Manager wrote every year to the President urging him to call for this meeting.  That ordinance stayed in affect until the collapse of the Soviet Union and the fall of the Berlin Wall.  So it has been not…it’s not inappropriate I think for this Council to act on this matter.  We urge you to join with the many other municipalities and governmental entities that have adopted similar resolutions for the revision of the Patriot Act and we urge you to support this resolution that is before you.  Thank you.

Mayor Meeker:  Thank you Mr. King.  Thanks.  Good afternoon.

Ms. Ruttinger:  Good afternoon Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, my name is Jennifer Ruttinger and I’m the Executive Director of the American Civil Liberties Union of North Carolina.  I thank you very much for the opportunity to address the Council.  In, in three minutes one can hardly scratch the surface but I would like to take a couple of minutes just to address some of the comments previously made by the US Attorney’s office.  First of all, I would like to address the so called Foreign Intelligence Wall.  Uh, I would like to mention here that the real problem was an unnecessarily strict interpretation, of these limitations that limit communication between agencies.  There was unnecessarily strict and it was made worse by, quote-unquote compartmentalization within the intelligence and federal law enforcement communities.  I want to quote Attorney General John Ashcroft who basically said this himself when testified to Congress.  The Attorney General recently admitted that the Department of Justice established a way between intelligence gathering and criminal investigations that was the result of in Ashcroft’s own words “flawed legal reasoning imposing a series of restrictions on the FBI that went beyond what the law required.”  In other words, it wasn’t bad law it was bad lawyering; however, use of intelligence authority to circumvent the Fourth Amendment’s probable cause requirement is always a serious and significant civil liberties concern.  Such concerns could be addressed in part by establishing farer procedures for dealing in a criminal case with evidence gathered in an intelligence search and by making more information about these searches public to the extent that such information does not compromise national security.  This so called wall need not be re-erected if rules are established that will help law enforcement protect civil liberties while sharing the information that must be shared to stop terrorist attacks and if there is more transparency.  Uh, legislation has been introduced in fact in the Senate by Republican Senator Lisa Markowski from Alaska and Democratic Senator Ron Widen of Oregon in response to over 300 communities around the country that have passed resolutions just like this one.  This legislation is called Protecting the Rights of Individuals Act.  Sections 8 and 9 go a long way towards solving these problems of communication between agencies.  Again, why are we here because you are our voice.  Three-hundred twenty nine communities around the country including four state legislatures have been our voice to Congress.  Yes, each one of us here can and most of probably have written letters and sent e-mails and faxes and called our congressional representatives and senators but you are our voice.  And we are calling on you to not offer specific language to amend the USA Patriot Act but simply to say our constituents are concerned please review it, please revise it so that the appropriate balances are struck between security which is extremely important and our cherished civil liberties that make this country great which of course are also extremely important.  Uh, to discuss the sunset provision that was just raised, actually less than 10 percent of the Patriot Act does sunset.  Uh, and of course efforts are underway by the administration to repeal the sunset.  We hope that does not happen.  It was a compromise that was struck in passing the Patriot Act.  Since people, uh, Councilman Regan, did not have time to read in congress.  In fact not enough copies had been printed for everyone to have received a copy of this 342 page bill because anthrax, if you recall had, people working out of hallways and closets and not even accessible by fax in many situations.  So, uh, they had freely admit they hadn’t read it and it was a human reaction to a crisis.  They were told this would keep us safe from terrorists.  Uh, one provision that does not sunset is Section 213, so-called “sneak and peak search warrants.”  This is something that has been cited in most, if not all, of the 329 resolutions and it is cited in the one before you today.  Uh, I, in just a minute, I guess, before the Patriot Act the government already had the authority in limited situations to delay notice for searches of some forms of electronic communications that were in the custody of a third party.  The government had to show the judge that if the person to be searched were given notice one of five things would happen: 1) an individual’s physical safety would be in danger; 2) someone with flee prosecution; 3) evidence would be tampered with; 4) potential witnesses would be intimidated; or, 5) an investigation would be jeopardized or a trial unduly delayed.  There have always been exceptions to the notice requirement; indigent circumstances they are called.  Now generally, though, those are the exceptions to the general rule.  The Fourth Amendment protects us from unreasonable searches and seizures and requires both the government to get a warrant and to give notice of that warrant for a reason; because we have a right to know when we are being searched.  For example:  you have the right to challenge the warrant, suppose they are at the wrong address?  They come to your house and they are at the wrong address.  You can say wait that guy lives over there.  Suppose the warrant is they are supposed to be looking for, uh, stolen car.  Well, they shouldn’t then be opening up dresser drawers.  So, there are all kinds of reasons why the Fourth Amendment exists.  The Supreme Court has never ruled on the constitutionally of sneak and peak searches.  But Section 13 takes the extremely limited authority and expands it so it is available in any kind search, physical or electronic, and any kind of criminal case.  This is not just terrorism that we are dealing with.  The standards that law enforcement must show is not probably cause.  It is not reasonable suspicion that this person being searched is involving criminal activity, it is simply that their investigation would be jeopardized if they notified you were being searched.  And remember this does not sunset, this is a permanent change in the law.  Uh, I know there are a lot of people who want to speak.  I’m sorry I don’t have time to get into roving wire tapes or Section 215 dealing with library records and other personal records.  I do; however, want to correct the record on Diane Feinstein thing.  Senator Feinstein as a matter of fact never called our office a member of her staff called the National ACLU and asked whether we aware of any reported abuse of the Patriot Act in the State of California.  We said we’ll check and we’ll get back with you.  The staffer appropriately did check and got back to the Senator letting the Senator know that in fact we are not aware of reported cases of abuse under the Patriot Act in the State of California.  Furthermore, this allegation that we can’t point to any specific incidents of abuse is a “Red Herring.”  Not only are the law’s provisions enforced in secret, but the law itself violates the constitution and that is what is really important here.  We can see the judicial review and other crucial checks and balances in the government surveillance and investigative powers and that in itself, according to Republican Senator Larry Craig of Idaho, who introduced the Safe Act to fix parts of the law.  That in and of itself justifies narrowing the law.  So, (inaudible).

Mayor Meeker:  I’m going to have to ask you sum up your comments please.

Ms. Ruttinger:  Yea, and please I’ll stop and ask…I’ll answer any questions.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, thank you very much.  Are there questions at this point?  Okay, well thank you.  Now we’ve already gone a little bit over the fifteen minutes.  How many people want to speak in favor of the resolution?  I see two hands, three hands.  Okay, four hands.  Well, what I need to do is I will extend it five minutes, we’ll have twenty minutes each.  I’m going to ask you to get right to your main point.  Okay, so please come up.  Go head who wants to go first?  (Inaudible) the other side an additional five minutes as well.

Mr. Laffinghouse:  My name is Greg Laffinghouse, I’m at 2900 South Lane. I appreciate the opportunity to come today to speak against the Patriot Act, which is a misnomer, and in favor of our Constitution and Bill of Rights.  First, I a saddened that I am here having to speak on this topic.  Second, I am disturbed that it’s taking so long for this to ah. . be addressed.  Ah, here are some of the headlines I read on a daily basis; US plan to recruit one in 24 Americans as citizen spies.  Ah, in New Orleans, they’re overhauling the City Hall to where the new homeland security office is to oversee the cops, the firemen, and the emergency agencies.  Ah, military is creeping into domestic law enforcement.  Wall Street Journal, you are a suspect, New York Times, William Sapphire.  Sapphire says every purchase you make with a credit card, every magazine subscription you buy and medical prescription you fill every web site you visit and email you send or receive, every academic grade you receive, every bank deposit you make, every trip you book and every event you attend, all these transactions and communications will go into what the Defense Department describes as a quote “virtual centralized grand data base” end quote.  It is apparent to me that we have forgotten who we are as a nation.  This does not sound like America to me.  If you had never heard of the Patriot Act, you would have thought that I was giving you news reports from Nazi Germany, Soviet Russia or Communist China.  This assault on our God given right is coming from both as major political parties.  The Patriot Act was not written overnight, it has been in the works for a long time and every day there is more legislation being snuck in.  This is not part of the false left right paradigm.  The very premise of our republic says that power comes from the people, the people give the government the authority to exist, not the other way around.  Some have questioned whether this is a subject local government should get involved in.  The answer is easy.  It is your duty to stand up for the Constitution and Bill of Rights.  All of you took an Oath to do so.  I hope you consider this when making your decision to support this resolution.  Thank you.

Mayor Meeker:  Thank you very much. . . . who’s next?  Yes sir, please go ahead.

Mr. McGuffin:  Good morning, my name is Andrew McGuffin, and I am an attorney here in Raleigh and I am a member of the National Lawyers Guild.  I just returned from Georgia where I was down working with a legal collective to make sure the civil liberties were respected and referenced to the G.8. Summit and what I saw there frightened me.  I saw a government that ah, had both military and civilian law enforcement on a daily basis stopping people and asking them questions without reasonable suspicion or probable cause.  I saw a man get pulled over after stopping to speak with some people who are from the Falun Gong about their religious beliefs and he was handed literature and the military humvee pulled him over, ask him what literature he had received and what those people talked to him about.  I saw people whose first amendment, fourth, fifth and sixth amendment rights were summarily violated.  And I see and hear it every day people telling me to just go ahead and trust us.  The U.S. Attorney is here telling us that the Attorney General has to report every six months to congress about what it is he is doing with these powers that he has been granted under the Patriot Act and at the same time in the media just last week or 8 days ago, I saw the Attorney General telling Congress that he was not going to answer their questions not under executive privilege but just because he did not want to.  And at the same time I hear the Attorney also talking about how, you know, the proper place to challenge these concerns is in the Courts of the United States.  One of the gentlemen got up here and spoke about the way that our system of government works and a lauded civil rights attorney, Arthur Cannoy, used to talk about the fourth branch of government, the people.  And we are the people and we have a right to be heard; not only in the Federal Courts but on the streets, in our City Councils and elsewhere.  And ah, I think it speaks volumes that the attorney wanted to wait until after we were done before he would answer some simple questions about the provisions of the Statute.  And so. . .(applause)

Mayor Meeker:  I need to ask you to refrain from any kind of noise.  But please go ahead and finish your comment.

Mr. McGuffin:  Okay.  I think that when we come to the government telling us to just trust them and they are not willing to be forthright and what it is that they are doing then that causes me great concern.  I did fight for the Constitution and I’m a veteran of the Marine Corp, I was in the first Gulf War and supposedly, I was defending the Constitution against all enemies, foreign and domestic.  Right now I think the people in this audience would agree with me that some of the most dangerous enemies to our liberty are within our own government and within our own country.  Thank you.

Mayor Meeker:

Thank you .  Who wants to speak next?   Yes sir.

Mr. Hendricks:  I shall be quick Mr. Mayor.  My name is John Ross Hendricks.  I am a veteran of the 82nd Airborne Division.  I have a son in the 82nd Airborne Division right now.  He just got back from Iraq, he was fighting for freedom.  And right now I guess I’m fighting for freedom too.  I would like to say, that make one point, and the one point I want to make sure all of you understand is that right now the respected profession of librarians has been pulled to the front line in the battle for freedom.  These people now are faced with a choice: to knuckle under to the tyranny of the Patriot Act or to risk being disappeared if they do not.  I want you to think about that Mr. Mayor.  And also along I want you think that if you were to anger this gentleman over here, he has the right to slip into your office tonight and look for anything he wants to look for just to see if he can find something on you.  We need to be careful about this, and probably they are going to be coming after me tonight just for thinking of talking about it.  I appreciate the opportunity to speak with you.

Mayor Meeker:  Thank you very much, yes sir.

Mr. Bradley:  Yes sir, my name is Jonathan Bradley, I live at 4604 Glenwood, 27612.  I just have two quick questions, one for the U.S. Attorney and one for the board members.

Mayor Meeker:  Sir, you can have comments but not ask questions.  (inaudible)

Mr. Bradley:  That’s fine then I’ll wait until the questions period.

Mayor Meeker: ……this is your chance to comment now.  There is not going to be a question, this is your chance.  Okay, yes sir

Mr. Lester:  I’ll be very quick.  My name is Seth Lester, I am a student at State.  I study philosophy, I wanted to speak to some of Mr. Isley’s questions.  First of all, I, in addition to being someone who studies things that are fake as my mum likes to say.  I am also a member of the Human Relations Commission and did serve on the working committee as it was called that hammered out these revisions.  First, I do want to say, 1) that we spent a copious amount of time in our meetings in the working group, probably over 100 man-hours determining what revision should and should not be made.  I cannot say what, if any, or, I can’t say which of the members did or did not read the Patriot Act.  Yeah, understand please that I am speaking for myself and giving my viewpoint and not of the Commission.  

Mr. Isley:  Did you read it?

Mr. Lester:  Yes sir, is reading it side-by-side with U.S. Code and looking at the amendments line-by-line.  It is a very daunting task.  And what is even more daunting, ah, none the less, I wanted to let you know that, I wanted to let you know that copious amounts of email discussion on our list server was held on it as well as including the proliferation of documents from the Coalition that stands before you are here today as well as documents from the American Civil Liberties Union and the Department of Justice and that’s pretty much it.

Mr. Isley:  May I ask a question?  I’m glad that you read it and I appreciate you taking the time to do that.  Do you remember what section the library issue is in and where that is specifically stated in the Patriot Act.

Mr. Lester:  It’s probably in the Teens but I can’t quite vividly remember it a the moment.

Mr. Isley:  You don’t recall?

Mr. Lester:  I, isn’t it…?  
Woman in audience:  215.  (inaudible)

Mr. Lester:  215?  Well, that’s…I mean I use my lifeline there so,….(laughter)

Mr. Isley:  And you certain that’s in the Patriot Act?

Mr. Lester:  I’m sorry?

Mr. Isley:  And you are certain that language is in the Patriot Act with respect to the library.

Mr. Lester:  What language?

Mr. Isley:  As to the Library and the issues that you are bringing before us today.

Mr. Lester:  Yes, yes.

Mayor Meeker:  Thank you very much we will go ahead and conclude that part of those in favor of the resolution.  Approximately 25 minutes for you.  How many would like to speak in opposition to the resolution?

Mr. Isley:  Just as a point of….to understand the process does the U. S. Attorney’s Office...are they part of the 25 minutes now?

Mayor Meeker:  Well, apparently that is what they....(inaudible).  Please go ahead.  Why don’t you two lead off, and are there more than those two?  Well then we’ll just split the 25 minutes then.

Mr. Boyce:  Good afternoon, my name is Gene Boyce, I am a veteran of the 18th Airborne Corps and I have been here in Raleigh since my getting out of the army since 1960.  Ah, since the subject of librarians has come up, I have searched the Act, I can not find the word Library in the Act.  I may be wrong but I have not found the word Library or Libraries in the Act but it reminded me of one thing that you all might have forgotten, the Unabomber, you remember the Unabomber.  A local terrorism not a foreign terrorist, but a local terrorist hidden away in the hills of Montana.  How was he caught?  His brother recognized an article that the newspaper ran an ominously because of his style of writing and it’s in references that his brother made in this particular document and reported it to the authorities.  That was the beginning of the effort to stop the terrorism of the Unabomber.  Ted Kaczynski, I think his name was.  How did the government follow-up on that and prove that he was the man who wrote the manifest that was printed in the newspaper?  Because he mentioned three books.  Three arcane books in his manifesto and the government was able to trace those books to that terrorist and used that circumstantial evidence to confirm the brother’s suspicion that it was his own brother who was killing people sending bombs in letters, envelopes, and universities around the nation.  That is all that I have to say about libraries and it looks like it may be a pretty good investigative tool to have at least available under the circumstances.  What I would like to say to you mainly is to refresh your recollection back to a point when I was, and I don’t like to think about this, it was really about middle age and I imagine some of you were probably in high school may be even. When did the war that we are in now and the terrorist act that we are talking about protecting us from the start, when did that war begin?  November of 1979, I am going through this quickly because I want to refresh your recollection.  November, 1979 a group of Iranians attacked and seized the American Embassy in Tehran.  1) Just a few years later, in April of 1983 a large vehicle driven into the U.S. Embassy in Beirut, exploded and killed 63 people.  Six short months later a large truck heavily laden with 2,500 pounds of TNT mashed into the gates of the U.S. Marine Corp Headquarters in Beirut, 241 U.S. Service men were killed.  Two months later, December 1983 another truck loaded with explosives is driven into the U.S. Embassy in Kuwait and American continues to fall asleep.  The fall of the year of September 1984 another van was driven again into the gates of the U.S. Embassy in Beirut.  6), terrorism spreads to Europe.  In April of 1985, a bomb explodes in a restaurant frequented by U.S. Soldiers in Madrid.  Does that ring a familiar bell?  Madrid? Trains? Bombings?  A couple of months ago?  8) In 1985 of August a Volkswagen loaded with explosives is driven into the main gate of U.S. Air Force at Rheinman.  Twenty-two of your fellow citizens and my fellow citizens were killed by terrorists.  Fifty-nine days later, October of 1985 a ship, a cruise ship, people on vacation, American citizens the Aquille Lauro is hijacked.  What do the terrorists do?  A man in a wheelchair is assassinated and rolled overboard.  9) The terrorist begin working on the airplanes and the TWA Flight 840 of April 1986 killed four people.  Just a short time later, PanAm Flight l03, over Lockerbie, Scotland, in 1988 killed 259 people.  11) The wake-up alarm is getting a little bit louder but America is still asleep.  In January of 1983 two CIA agents were killed as they entered the CIA Headquarters in Langley, Virginia.  The following month, February of 1983 a group of terrorists rented a van, filled it up with explosives, drove it into the underground parking garage at the World Trade Center, killed 6 people and injured over 1,000 people.  13) November 1995 a car bomb explodes in a military complex in Riyahd, Saudi Arabia.  14) A few months later in June 1996 another truck bomb explodes 35 miles from U.S. Military Compound in Iran, Saudi Arabia, destroying the tower, killing 19 of our people and injuring over 500.  The terrorists are getting braver and braver.  Then they moved to the U. S. Embassies and by a strange coincidence, almost simultaneously, two Embassies, one in Kenya and Tanzania were bombed killing 224 people.  (inaudible) 16) The U. S. Cole, just a few months later, October 2000, the terrorist drove a small boat up against the U.S. Cole, explode it killing themselves, but worse, killing 17 of our U. S. Military, Navy personnel; and, 17) and there are some more, with September 11, when it came home to the attention of all of us in which give rise to the impetus for Congress to get on the ball.  The Patriot Act is not, is not a new piece of legislation.  It is not a new act, it is a revision of at least eight old laws that were entirely out of date, acquainted arcane as of September and October 2001.  It amended the FISA, it amended the FOIA, the FTCA Act, DNA Act, the IEEPA and I can tell you what all of these are the ECPA is Electric Communications, the AEDPA, all of those acts were consolidated, amended and modernized.  In 1978 when this Act was first, the basic Act, the FICA, the security...the Intelligence Security Act was enacted, there were no cell phones, there were no lap top computers, there was no cablevision, there was no international communication.  You could not take cell phone as I could today, push a button and explode a bomb in North Hills Shopping Mall, one mile from my home.  Today that is possible and that is what the law enforcement agency that work day and night, a small group that we have are up against.  If you know what a pin register is, you are ready to vote on this.  If you know what a trap and trace device is, you read the vote on this.  If you know what a sneak and peak search warrant and all the ramifications, you are ready to vote on it.  If you don’t know about all of those things, maybe not.  If you read the recent case, of American Civil Liberties Union versus the Department of Justice, you will know that the courts in this country have already stated that one section, at least 552 of the Act, Dr. West, represents a carefully considered balance between the right of the public to know what their government is up to and the often compelling interest that the government maintains in keeping certain information private to protect particular individuals or the national interest, is all.  I respect the work you do.  You are our legislative body; you are not a judicial body, but the judicial branch of government is that branch which decides these questions.  If one person, one individual, even my friends back here who will not clap for me is mistreated by the government, I will be the first in line to defend them and protect their rights, free of charge if necessary.

Mayor Meeker:  Thank you Mr. Boyce.  Are there comments from the US Attorney?  Did you want to make comments?  You’re behind the seat; I can’t see you there.  Is there anyone else who wants to comment?  Please come forward.

Mr. Candelmo:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, thank you for having me here.  My name is Jim Candelmo.  I am a career prosecutor with the United States Attorney’s Office.  I have served as a Federal Prosecutor for over 14 years investigating financial fraud, espionage, trading with the enemy, terrorism.  I am our district’s…I am the District’s Antiterrorism Coordinator.  As such, I coordinate a group that is comprised over 50 Federal, State, and local enforcement, and first responders, in our effort for the war on terrorism.  They bid you greetings.  The war on terrorism is real.  I visit the front lines every day.  It is here, fought overseas, and it is fought by the dedicated men and women of law enforcement who have sworn to uphold and protect the Constitution of the United States, as I have, and as I do before you today.  The USA Patriot Act was passed after 45 days of nonstop deliberation by both houses of Congress.  It was passed 98 to 1 to 1 and received over 80 percent of votes in the House with support from both parties.  The Act updates federal criminal law investigative techniques which have been the subject of numerous Constitutional challenges and have been upheld in numerous courts.  An example:  roving wire taps.  Now you can hearken back to the days of Miami Vice, when you were watching it on television and they were speaking on large cumbersome cell phones that cost $600 to $1,000 a piece.  We applied for wire taps on those phones and we received permission to tap those lines after showing a judge that we have reasonable belief that were being used by drug cartels.  Only one problem.  The order was for that phone number specifically.  It is easy to say today that the Constitution protects you, me, and each and every member of this group here today.  Does it protect a specific phone number?  The drug dealers, making millions upon millions of dollars through these phones in oceans, bays, and waterways, every week knowing that it took three to five days for us to acquire these court orders on that specific number.  It was brought to the attention of Congress; the law was changed.  It permitted wire taps on people no matter what phone they used that is a legitimate, logical, rational law enforcement technique which the USA Patriot Act allows us to use against terrorists.  Another example is for our ability to receive business records.  Business records that in the course of my job I have subpoenaed via the Grand Jury every single day of the week.  Librarians are not mentioned anywhere in the Act; Section 215.  Librarian records have been useful tools in apprehending the Zodiac Killer as well as the Versace Murder case.  They are a business record.  A record that a Grand Jury anywhere in the United States can request with virtually no legal threshold to jump.  Any recourse for that subpoena would be brought into a court of law in a motion to quash.  There is no exemption for these records from the Grand Jury subpoena.  What the Patriot Act allows us to do in a time sensitive situation is receive those documents quicker and maintain the integrity and secrecy of investigation so not to alert the subjects.  It is not hard to imagine that of the 19 hijackers on September 11, if we disclosed or discovered the actions of 1 plane, we would have failed 3 times that day.  The investigation would have to proceed in an attempt to acquire the identities of the other sets of hijackers and what planes they were going to fly that day.  The resolution before you, make no bones about it, is misleading, inaccurate and often irrelevant to any meaningful discussion of the USA Patriot Act.  If that is where this resolution ended that alone would be enough for you to vote against it.  By passage of this resolution this Council is affectively exposing the City of Raleigh to potential municipal liability claims by law enforcement using these traditional techniques.  But more importantly this police department, the Raleigh Police Department is an active and viable member of the FBI Joint Terrorism Task Force which operates in the eastern district of North Carolina.  That Joint Terrorism Task Force uses provisions of the Patriot Act in its investigations.  Let me clarify a point earlier.  I cannot comment to you about uses of the Patriot Act because of my desire to withhold things from you.  As a prosecutor I am ethic bound not to discuss the particulars of any potentially ongoing investigation, no matter how right I am, and I must serve that.  And that is in the interest of the subject investigation.  It certainly not in my interest as my reputation is assailed for trying to keep facts from you.  But the involvement, or the Raleigh Police Department’s involvement jeopardized, this is a direct legitimate threat to the citizens that you have sworn to serve.  The long anticipated in review of the resolution.  I’ll begin on Page 2 of your resolution, where it says in this language, we believe these inalienable rights are now directly threatened.  Subparagraph A Inhibits constitutionally protected speech through vague and overly broad definitions of terrorism and increase of a new crime of domestic terrorism.  The interpretation which resides exclusively in the hands of the Attorney General and the President.  Directing to your attention to Section 802 of the Act itself, Domestic Terrorism, as to violate a Federal or State law and it has to be dangerous to human life.  Those are extremely high standards to be defined.  “B” virtually eliminates judicial supervision of telephone and internet surveillance.  I can see the lawyers fingerprints all over this document with the use of the word “virtually.”  I’m still waiting to know what that means.  But let me tell you what Section 6, Section 216 talks about.  That is trapped trace, pen registers but more importantly what you want to know not content.  Not content.  I can secure a Grand Jury subpoena for the phone calls that were emanated from this phone.  That is not content.  We have been doing that since the phone systems began.  Greatly expands the government’s authority to conduct secret searches.  I’ve made that clear from the beginning.  We now can conduct searches, under judicial supervision, in the items of terrorism.  Grant the FBI broad access to individual medical, mental, financial, employment, education records without having to show evidence of a crime or without a court order.  Again I will hearken back to the Grand Jury subpoena where we grant…get this evidence all the time.  Permits the FBI to track individual book borrowing libraries and book purchases, and video rentals in stores.  It makes it a crime for librarians and vendors to reveal their knowledge of such tracking.  215 expressly protects First Amendment activity, upon examination of the Act.  However, again, this is a traditional law enforcement technique which could be obtained via a Grand Jury subpoena; a lower standard.  This involves a district judge or higher before we can get the information before we can even ask for the information.  In regards to secrecy, I don’t think it’s any great leap of logic that if we have the people telling us what plane reservation they made they may be on to it.  Federal executive orders and federal government actions since September 11th permit wire tapping of conversations between federal prisoners and lawyers.  Well this is…not even does it cite the Patriot Act but just (inaudible) prisoners, prisons.  “B”, eliminate Justice Department regulations against illegal intelligence operations.  Again A.G. guidelines, doesn’t even cite the Patriot Act.  In the four corners of the document it’s answering question.  Establish secret military tribunals for terrorism suspects, citizens and non-citizens.  I don’t what the MO 111301 is, but I’ll tell you it is not the USA Patriot Act and there is no section cited.  Permit thousands of men, mostly Arab and South Asian origin, to be held for months in secret custody without any charges filed against them, without, again they cite something that is not the Patriot Act.  However, in all clarity the Attorney General does have the ability to detain an individual.  However, the Attorney General is on record to have not exercised this vet.  The Eastern District of North Carolina is the major strategic military projection platform for the United States Government.  Raleigh is not only the State capital but the cultural, educational and economic center of this district, home to thousands of military families deployed overseas.  Whether you agree with this administration’s policies in Iraq and Afghanistan, we all agree to support out troops.  One of the perks of my job is I get to work with these people, talk with these people and before they deploy we have a conversation.  And I want to tell you about one of those conversations.  I told him, “You be careful over there.”  And he looked at me and he said, “We’ll take care of us.  You take care of my family.”  I wake up with that thought and I go to sleep at night with that thought.  I know you do too.  Before passing this resolution I ask each and every one of you to answer two questions.  Is this resolution necessary?  To answer that you have to know what it is in the act.  I am not aware of one single sworn law enforcement officer appearing before your Human Rights Subcommittee or its working group to testify in regards to the impact of this Act.  I am not aware of any single representative of the Raleigh Police Department being contacted in regards to this Act officially by this Board.  Are there forms to challenge the law?  There is judicial and there is legislative.  The second question is, is this wise?  What message are you sending law enforcement?  Taking the tools away that they think are necessary.  What message are you sending the terrorist? Federal Bureau of Investigation, State Bureau of Investigation, North Carolina Attorney General, US Attorney, US Marshall are dedicated, thousands of State and local law enforcement are dedicated to making North Carolina a lion.  As one terrorists said there are lions and lambs in this world.  There are enough lambs; let’s go after the lambs.  We want to make Raleigh a lion.  What message are you sending to leaders in Washington who decide our resources, as I beg for additional resources, as your law enforcement state and local beg for funding.  What message are you sending them?  Is there any doubt in the language of this Act?  It says the United States laws that pre-existed 9/11 would, if complimentary and effectively implemented, be sufficient to investigate terrorist and bring them to justice.  That is the one thing that 9/11 Commission can be able to agree on.  The quote is we knew but we didn’t know we knew and that is what this Act seeks to do.  But don’t take my word for it.  Take the overwhelming voice of Congress, who reviewed this.  With your indulgence…Senator Joe Biden, Democrat, “The FBI could get a wire tap to investigate the mafia but no one could get one to investigate the terrorist.  To put this bluntly it’s crazy.  What is good for the mob should be good for terrorists.”  Senator Edwards, Democrat, North Carolina, “We simply cannot prevail in the battle against terrorism if the right hand of our government has no idea what the left hand is doing.”  Senator Schumer, Democrat, New York, “If there is one key that underscores this bill it is balance.  The balance between the need to update our laws given new challenges and to maintain our basic freedoms, which distinguishes us from our enemies.”  Senator Biden, “This antiterrorism bill today is measured.”  Senator Daschle, Democrat, South Dakota, “This reflects the balance between protection of civil liberties and privacy and the need for greater law enforcement.”  Senator Feinstein, “As we look back at the massive terrible incident of September 11, we try to ascertain whether our government has the tools necessary.  And intelligence could have perhaps avoided these events.  The only answer we’ve come up with after briefing after briefing is we do not have those tools.  This bill aims to change that.  “Speaking of the Patriot Act.”  This bill is a bill which time has come.  This bill is necessary and I, as a Senator from California, am happy to support it.”

Man in Audience:  (Inaudible).

Mayor Meeker:  Please, let’s be quiet.  If you could just sum up your comments now.  Each side has about 25 minutes.  So if you could wrap it up that would be great.

Mr. Candelmo:  Thank you.  In the days after 9/11 I was brought a tape.  The doomed flight just flew into the first Trade Center.  The flight attendant called into the American Airlines Reservation Center here in our district.  After negotiating the labyrinth of bureaucracy and finally getting to talk to somebody who could do something it was too late.  The transmitter was turned off.  Sitting in a quiet conference room myself and several agents listened to this tape, silent.  When she realized the jet had taken its turn and where it was finally heading she said this, “Pray for us.”  She came face-to-face with the enemy.  An enemy that is ruthless, scheming, intelligent and evil.

Mr. Candelmo:  In the two and a half years since, I’ve learned that she meant not just her or the people on that plane, but for all of us because we are going to be confronted by this enemy.  I ask you and this Council to vote against this resolution.  This is not necessary.  It is not wise.  It absolutely sends the wrong message and we thank you for your support.

Mayor Meeker:  Thank you for your comments.  And with that we will conclude the public hearing each side has had 25 or 26 minutes and we’ll bring it back for Council and discussion.  Let me at the outset, thank everyone.  It’s apparent how strong the feelings are on both sides of this issue and let me thank everyone for being here with us today.  Okay, let’s bring back for Council discussion.  What would the Council like to do at this point?

Mr. Isley:  Well, as I say all along that, uh, I just don’t think we have any business making any comment on this, uh, this issue back in March they approached us.  Uh, we are a Council that has to deal with the City of Raleigh issues related to roads, police safety.  Uh, we have a budget that is imposed right now that has a 3 percent tax increase.  Well, I’m sorry a 3 cent tax increase.  We have all kinds of issues that are very, very important to the way we run our City.  And we’ve had a long standing policy not to comment on issues of a national import.  I don’t think it is appropriate for us to pass this resolution.  I think if we do this we are opening the door to having folks come down before us the day after April 15 and ask us to issue a resolution protesting the tax rate.  And this is a dangerous precedent.  We will have many meetings just like this one to listen to both sides of an issue where clearly the Congress of the United States of America, the Supreme Court of the United States can take these issues up and deal with them.  Uh, this is an issue that is certainly important to all of us.  And all of us have the ability to contact our congressmen, our senators on a national level and voice our opinion, but I just don’t believe this is appropriate for the City of Raleigh to get involved in.  And I would respectively move that we deny this resolution and we go on to further City business.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, is there a second motion?

Mr. Hunt:  I second that.

Mayor Meeker:  Second by Mr. Hunt.  Okay, is there discussion on that?

Ms. Taliaferro:  Mr., Mr. Mayor, um, the one thing that I have learned today is that this is an extremely complicated issue.  And that, uh, there are parts of this resolution that I may personally agree with and there are parts of it that I don’t even understand.  For instance some of the references to bills other than the Patriot Act.  Uh, I agree with Mr. Isley that this is not really in our pervious hard solid waste services and, uh, things of that nature.  I think that it becomes a concern to us if it is a problem for our law and public safety officers.  We as was pointed out we have not heard directly from.  Uh, rather than deny the resolution I would prefer that we just take no action on it.  We take it as information and if an issue comes up that deals specifically with parts of the Patriot Act then we can look at it again.  But…I’m just not sure how this has to do with the day-to-day business in the City.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, lets…becoming I have received a lot of information today.  A lot to think about.  I actually have not read the Patriot Act.  So, I prefer to have a couple of weeks to look this over.  So, I will not vote today to turn the resolution out.  I would like to think about for a couple of weeks and so that’s where I am on the matter.

Ms. Cowell:  Well, it’s kinda wonderful how things become clearer at the table because I have certainly talked for a number of months with the ACLU.  Um, and also, I mean, today this is an incredible complex legal discussion which I’ve learned an incredible amount from a lot of very talented and smart people.  And, I, I feel like this is relevant to the City and that as the US Attorney stated our police force serves as a joint member of the Task Force.  They collaborate on these issues that police could be involved.  So, I still feel very confident that this is an issue that we can discuss and, and should.  It certainly can be debatable.  However, where…after today’s discussion I don’t feel like I could defend each and everyone of these points without extensive study.  I have a…a sort of a substitute I guess to the Mayor’s, which is what I do feel like I could support and defend.  Every decision I make at this table I try to research and understand and the City ordinance and the law and put a lot of time into it.  I could spend a lot of time on this.  What I would propose is that I could take the first four whereases and then substitute, create concern about a violation of constitutional amendments listing the amendments.  What I can’t defend and can’t say that I am knowledgeable enough to defend is the second clause where we make the statements on the Patriot Act, but then I could come down and say that the Constitution applies in war time as peace, be it resolved that we would maintain.  What I am absolutely clear is that I would maintain that the United States Constitution, including the Bill of Rights, is the ultimate legal authority wherever its provisions conflict with those of the US Patriot Act or a Federal Executive Odors, and that we would pass that resolution on.  There is a lot of questions, you know, is there a conflict is there not, the extensive legal debate.  If there is conflict I do feel like it is my duty as a City Councilor to say that the US Constitution and the Bill of Rights is absolutely the documents that I will uphold.  I promise to uphold and I am comfortable to making a resolution to that state.

Mayor Meeker:  What don’t we do this why don’t we take a vote on Mr. Isley’s motion if that succeeds that completes the matter and if it doesn’t then perhaps we can defer this to (Inaudible).

Mr. Regan:  I would like to make a statement if I could before I…
Mayor Meeker:  Sure Mr. Regan, go ahead.

Mr. Regan:  Yea.  Ninety-eight out of one hundred senators voted for this thing.  Eighty percent of the House of Representatives vote for this.  Uh, our local delegation voted for it and I would suggest that the burden of proof lies with those who want to resolve against this law and I have heard lots of statements.  And I was open.  I listened, uh, I admit to being bias against the National ACLU, but the local folks here I’ve grown to like and respect and I did listen to them.  And I heard again and again that this violates our Bill of Rights.  And I was waiting today to hear what it was.  And it’s…so, I just picked one example that one of the proponents came up and talked about Section 213 Authority for Delaying Notice of Executive of a Warrant.  And the…the relevant, uh, amendment is the Fourth Amendment.  I looked at it and there is nothing in the Fourth Amendment that even says that you need to give notice of a warrant.  So, I, I, you know, just based on that one alone I don’t…I don’t think the burden of proof is met.  I think that particular example is just, to me, calls into the question the entire argument the proponents of the resolution are bringing.  Uh, I, and I can’t, can’t get away from the fact that we’ve got our local delegation, the Senators, the House of Representatives, an others that I trust and respect here.  And then we got an organization that attacks the Boy Scouts and defends the North American Man/Boy Love Association pushing this thing.  And I’m, I want to vote very strongly to reject this resolution because I think by attacking it in a baseless way it does put our national defense at risk.

Mayor Meeker:  Thank you.

Mr. Crowder:  Mr. Mayor.

Mayor Meeker:  Mr. Crowder?  Mr. West?

Mr. Crowder:  Well, this is a very complex issue, but at the same time, ah, I think for us to sit here and say that in 45 days at the time that our, that Congress looked at this in the heat of 9/11 that all decisions were made very carefully and every potential conflict was seen at that time.  I mean for God’s sake, we just talk about issues that are sitting in Law and Public Safety here at our table we got a rental ordinance issue that’s been batted around for a year.  So to say that everything in this document is constitutional is not for me necessarily to say.  However, with that said there is a concern of the continuants of the City of Raleigh; and I think echoing what Ms. Cowell said and yourself, I cannot make that determination of just by what was heard here today or at this, by just breezing through the actual document here.  Ah, and I think by looking at certain parts of this resolution there are some changes to that document that could easily say we express that concern for our . . . . or the citizens expressed this concern to address those.  So I would like to defer this as well and just go back and be able to take a look at it and lets see what part of this do we feel comfortable with as a body because I am not an attorney.

Ms. Cowell:  Well, I had actually made a substitute motion which it may fail for lack of a second but I just wanted to say for the record….
Mr. West:  I would like to make a…
Mayor Meeker:  Yes, Mr. West, go ahead.

Mr. West:  You know we talk a lot about the role of the City, and you know people talk about smaller vision and larger vision.  I ready think that ah, cities are about larger vision.  And I think that discussion to me is citizenship in action.  I have heard some compelling statements on both sides and I think it has been a very process because it’s educational, and it helps all of us to be better citizens and that makes for a better City, for a better community.  And I always think that at this level we ought to create a public space so that citizens can participate.  Sometimes it comes a little bit messy, but that is really what this process is all about.  I think the thing that concerns me, not just related to the Patriot Act, but there is kind of a mind set sometimes that experts, people in charge, tend to make all of the decisions.  Actually, we need to remember that we work for our continuants and the people that we serve so it’s very important to give our citizens an opportunity to participate and to link them to the necessary resources and these kind of experiences so that we all can be more informed in terms of making the right kind of decisions so it took a little time but I definitely think this has been beneficial.  I would tend to agree with Mr. Crowder that based on all of the information that I have heard today I don’t think that I am informed enough to make the decision that should be made.  I do have a concern about the influence that we may have related to the roll of our Raleigh City Police and there are just some things out there that are not clear enough for me to make a decision on this.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, I think everyone has spoke but Ms. Cowell and….

Mr. Hunt:  Mr. Mayor, I have…
Mayor Meeker:  I’m sorry, Mr. Hunt, go ahead.

Mr. Hunt:  I would just like to say that I do not think this Council has time to become constitutional scholars.  We have two lawyers on this body and I suspect they might have time but I know I’m too old.  There is just not a chance that I am going to learn enough of that constitution to be an expert enough to make that kind of decision.  Now, from a common sense perspective, we have 99 senators that voted for this, or 98.  We have 80% of the Congress that did.  For us think that we have the right, really, to overrule is totally presumptuous in my view.

Audience members:  (inaudible)

Mayor Meeker:  Uh, let’s please have quiet, let him express his opinion more.

Mr. Hunt:  These folks out there are trying to kill us.  They want us dead.  We need to do whatever we can to protect ourselves.  I am grateful that we have attorneys that work for the U.S. Government prosecutors that are trying to protect us.  I mean this is, this is, frankly I think this is ludicrous.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, thank you, okay now every one has spoken Ms. Cowell was treating her comments as a substitute motion is there a second at this time.

Mr. Crowder:  Second.

Mayor Meeker:  There was a second on that, Ms. Cowell could you restate what your proposal is?

Ms. Cowell:  Yes, let me go ahead and I’ll, just let me just actually read through the first portion. . . so 

WHEREAS, the City of Raleigh recognizes the Bill of Rights in the U.S. Constitution and the Declaration of Rights in the North Carolina Constitution as inalienable liberties which are secured against the powers of our federal and state governments; and

WHEREAS, the City of Raleigh has a long and distinguished history of protecting and enhancing the rights of its citizens; and

WHEREAS, Raleigh is a politically diverse population which includes traditional and new residents, students, immigrants, and others whose combined contributions are vital to our City’s growth and character; and

WHEREAS, acts of terrorism against the United States on September 11, 2001, prompted the federal government to declare a “war on terrorism”, many aspects of which, in its domestic implementation, and I am changing it to “have created a concern about the violation of the following constitutional amendments”, and then that perceives as stated first, fourth, fifth, sixth, eight, fourteenth.  Becoming the constitutional experts and debate I am taking out the “whereas” where we talk about all of the different concerns and simply state that the coming to the third page, whereas the provisions of the constitution apply in war time as in peace and to violate or department from them under the plea of necessity or any other plea is the subversive of good government; be it now, therefore resolved that the City of Raleigh maintains that the United States Constitution including the Bill of Rights is the ultimate legal authority whenever its provisions conflict with those of the U.S.A Patriot Act or other federal executive orders and request that the Mayor transmit a copy of this resolution upon adoption; and, we can simply you know, to the members of Congress representing the residents of Raleigh, North Carolina and the President and the Attorney General of the United States.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, as written in that as the substitute motion are there any other discussion on that other than what already has been said?  Okay, all in favor of the substitute motion say “aye”.
Everyone:  “Aye”

Mayor Meeker:  All oppose 

Everyone:  “No”

Mayor Meeker:  That’s five to three – Mr. Regan, Mr. Hunt and Mr. Isley is that correct?  The three that voted against it.  That passed then five to three in that modified form.  Okay that concludes our discussion in this matter and again thank you for coming out.

Mr. Isley:  No wait, wait, wait...(inaudible)  That resolution will now be debated in two weeks, correct?  Pursuit to the Council policy

M. Taliaferro:  The resolution to the resolution?

Mayor Meeker:  Well, we just voted on...

Mr. Isley:  Oh, no, I am going to call to challenge the chair on that we have a set policy in place that that cannot happen.

Mayor Meeker:  Well, it is on the same subject.

Mr. Isley:  No, that is not the case.  I am challenging the chair right now...

Ms. Cowell:  If this is a...let me just state.....if this was a resolution that was put out two weeks ago and I am revising an existing that was simply an edit.

Mr. Regan:  Well, that makes it a new resolution.

Ms. Cowell:  Well, I don’t know....I’m just asking....

Mr. Isley:  It is stated...

Mayor Meeker:  I assume the City Council has voted on it.  If there is a motion that the Council reconsider we can hear that...(inaudible).

Mr. Isley:  I am challenging the Chair on that vote because our stated policy of this City Council is to have two weeks to look at any resolution and you have done this a lot of times, Charles, and I am not going to sit here and allow this to happen again.

Mayor Meeker:  We have done it when there is....on a new subject on the same subject you can amend the resolution.

Mr. Isley:  This document was changed substantially and a new resolution was proposed.

Mayor Meeker:  But it’s a (inaudible)…well...

Mr. Isley:  I’m challenging the Chair and I’m. (inaudible).

Mayor Meeker:  Council can overrule me.  Mr. Attorney, can you advise Mr. Isley what the perfect motion is.

Mr. McCormick:  I think he is asking a point of order that he wants to challenge the ruling of the chair that there was a vote on the substitute motion.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, and what is the procedure at that point as we have not done this before.

Mr. McCormick:  Well, you of course have ruled that you were voting on the motion that the resolution has passed, so that it would take five votes of the Council to overturn that ruling.

Mayor Meeker:  Okay, is there a motion to over turn my ruling on that.

Mr. Isley:  And I am moving to overturn the vote

Mr. Hunt (inaudible)….I second.

Ms. Taliaferro:  Let me get a clarification Mr. Isley is that to reconsider the vote on the resolution or is that…
Mr. Isley:  Follow our policy which is to hold the resolution for two weeks at our next Council and when it will be discussed.

Ms. Taliaferro:  That’s exactly what I’m….

Mayor Meeker:  And what I ruled is that because it’s on this same topic it can be voted on the same day.

Ms. Taliaferro:  I guess, can I ask the City Attorney just for some historical perspective, ah what is our state of practice with that or policy on that?

Mr. West:  Can I also ask…is it related to the subject or does it have to be in verbatim that’s what….
Mr. McCormick:  I think generally Mr. West it’s been related to subject I think I understood Ms. Cowell’s motion to be that she was amending this resolution in the fashion that she did and that the Mayor has indicated that the vote was going to be to pass that motion, that is what I understood.

Mayor Meeker:  And Mr. Isley is contending that he believes that we ought to wait two weeks before we vote on it.  Okay, That’s been moved by Mr. Isley and seconded.  Any discussions on the motion to (inaudible), the point of order, or whatever it is?

Mr. McCormick:  With the point of order challenging, the chair’s ruling that…
Mayor Meeker:  The motion passed…
Mr. McCormick:  The motion passed instead of being placed on the next Council agenda as a special item.

Ms. Taliaferro:  Okay, well now, I’m still confused.  So if we support Mr. Isley’s motion it simply gets put back on our agenda in two weeks from now, in a written form of that is proposed…
Mr. Isley:  That we all could see…
Ms. Taliaferro:  That was proposed today…
Mr. Isley:  Instead of what was read to us.

Ms. Cowell:  Right, got cha.
Mayor Meeker:  Okay, all in favor of Mr. Isley’s motion say “aye”… ‘aye’…all opposed ‘no’. . I believe that was four to four so that does not pass.  Okay that concludes our discussion of that matter.

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS – HEARING TO CONSIDER POSSIBILITY OF CONSOLIDATION – HELD – RESOLUTION ADOPTED
This was a hearing on the possible consolidation of the two municipal service districts into a single municipal service district with the new district boundary being coincidental with the boundary of the existing district one.  The Mayor opened the hearing.
Margaret Mullin explained the proposal, the reasons behind the recommendation for consolidating the districts pointing out there had been a different level of service in the districts.  Letters were mailed to all property owners in both districts and no one wanted to see the service level decrease.  The property owners have asked that all properties within both districts be treated the same which is the higher level.  She asked the Council to move forward with the proposal for consolidation of the two districts so they can provide all with the same service.
Jim Lofton pointed out he and his wife own a bed and breakfast and prior to the municipal service district concept, they advised people not to walk donation.  He stated since the municipal service districts have gone into effect, they can tell people it is safe to walk in the downtown area.  It is refreshing to be able to do that.  It has made a huge difference and everyone should be treated the same and have the same service level.  He asked the Council to move forward with the consolidation.
Joe Sansom pointed out if it ain’t broke don’t fix it, but in this case it is broke and he would call on the Council to fix it by consolidating the two districts.  No one else asked to be heard, thus the hearing was closed.  
Mayor Meeker moved adoption of a resolution consolidating the two municipal service districts into a single municipal service district with a new district boundary being coincidental with the boundary of existing District 1.  His motion was seconded by Mr. Crowder.  City Attorney McCormick indicated the Council will see this again, it will be part of the budget ordinance to set the tax rate for the area.  The motion as stated was put to a roll call vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Resolution 116.
Later in the meeting, Mr. Regan stated he wanted to change his vote as he understands this action would be adding to the tax rate of some downtown businesses.  He wanted his vote to be recorded no.  Ms. Cowell moved that Mr. Regan be allowed to change his vote to no.  Her motion was seconded by Mr. Hunt and put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative (Mayor Meeker excused from meeting.)  The Mayor Pro Tem ruled the motion adopted and pointed out Resolution 116 would be adopted on a 7-1 vote.
STC-8-04 – JAMAICA DRIVE – HEARING – RESOLUTION ADOPTED
This was a hearing to consider the permanent closing of a portion of right-of-way known as Jamaica Drive.  The hearing is pursuant to petition, advertisement and notification as required by law. (STC-8-04)
The Mayor opened the hearing.  No one asked to be heard, thus the hearing was closed.  Mayor Meeker moved adoption of a resolution authorizing the closing as advertised.  His motion was seconded by Mr. Crowder and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Resolution 112.

EASEMENT EXCHANGE – FALLS OF VILLAGE TOWNHOMES – HEARING – RESOLUTION ADOPTED

This was a hearing to consider exchanging sanitary sewer easements relating to Falls Village Townhomes according to Resolution 2004-86.  The hearing is pursuant to petition and advertisement as required by law.
The Mayor opened the hearing.  No one asked to be heard, thus the hearing was closed.  Mr. West moved adoption of a resolution authorizing the exchange as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Mr. Crowder and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Resolution 113.
EASEMENT EXCHANGE – MAHLER’S GLEN – HEARING – RESOLUTION ADOPTED
This was a hearing to consider exchanging sanitary sewer easements relating to Mahler’s Glen according to Resolution 2004-85.  The hearing is pursuant to petition and advertisement as required by law.
The Mayor opened the hearing.  No one asked to be heard, thus the hearing was closed.  Mr. Regan moved adoption of a resolution authorizing the exchange as outlined.  His motion was seconded by Mr. West and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Resolution 114.
ANNEXATION PETITIONS – VARIOUS – HEARING – ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED
This was a hearing to consider the following petitioned annexations.  If following the hearing the Council wishes to proceed with the annexations it would be appropriate to adopt ordinances annexing the properties effective June 30, 2004 and a resolution placing the properties in the appropriate electoral districts.
LOCATION






ELECTORAL DISTRICT

Heritage Manor Subdivision
C

Portion of Triangle Town Commons
B

3021 Southall Road/People’s Property
B

Autumn Trace Apartments/Autumn Spring Congregate Care
B

4100 Pearl Road/Strickland Property
C

North Raleigh UMC/8501 Honeycutt Road
A

Hamilton Landscapes, 3729 Overlook Road
B

3708 Conquest Drive/Poole’s Plumbing
C

Riverbrook, Phase II
C
Mayor Meeker opened the hearing on each case.  No one asked to speak on any items with the exception of 3021 Southall Road/People’s Property.  The owner of 3021 Southall Road indicated he does not want to be annexed.  His property was on well and septic tank and the well went bad; therefore they requested City water and sewer.  He stated they will be paying all city fees and permits to be able to get City water.  The only reason they requested annexation is the fact that they needed the water.  He stated they do not have any other City of Raleigh services.  He talked about the people in the area and whether they are or are not within the City and have City utilities.  He requested that the City not require annexation of their property.  No one else asked to be heard on that issue.  The Mayor ruled the hearing closed.  Mr. Hunt moved adoption of an ordinance annexing property at 3021 Southall Road effective June 30, 2004 and a resolution placing the property in City Council Electoral District B.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Ordinance 657 and Resolution 115.
Mr. Regan moved adoption of Ordinances annexing the other properties effective June 30, 2004 and adoption of a resolution placing the properties in the appropriate electoral districts.  His motion was seconded by Mr. Crowder and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Ordinances 655, 656, 658, 659, 660, 661, 662, 663 and Resolution 115.
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE BUDGET AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
RBC CENTER – SIGN – APPROVED CONDITIONALLY
Mayor Meeker reported the Budget and Economic Development Committee recommends approval of the design of the RBC Center sign in the Wade Avenue right-of-way with the following conditions:
a.
that the design be revised as shown on the rendering included in the agenda packet that modifies the base of the sign and limits colors to off-white, white lights, a movable message text and elimination of the logos;
b.
that the lower 4'6" panel be removed and the total height of the sign be reduced accordingly;
c.
that the landscaped area as approved by the Appearance Commission be expanded to provide replacement ground cover; and,
d.
that the trees being removed along Wade Avenue be limited to the six (6) as identified on the aerial photograph on display in the Council Chambers entitled “Landscaping Plan - 4/26/04”.
On behalf of the Committee, Mayor Meeker moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Mr. West.  Mr. Crowder pointed out approval of this action would be setting a bad precedent.  This is one of the last green corridors entering into our City.  He stated he is very supportive of the arena and the Hurricanes and what goes on at the arena but he feels this is a change to our sign ordinance.  Mr. Isley stated he completely agrees but pointed out there is a specific exemption in the sign ordinance.  He stated he voted in support of the motion acknowledging that position.  The motion as stated was put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Crowder who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
UNITED YOUTH COUNCIL – YOUTH DAY SUMMER FUN FEST – REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA
Mayor Meeker reported the Budget and Economic Development Committee recommends that the item United Youth Council – Youth Day Summer Fun Fest be removed from the agenda with no action taken.  Without discussion the item was removed from the agenda.
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT – HOME FUNDS – CITYWIDE USE AUTHORIZED
Mayor Meeker reported the Budget and Economic Development Committee recommends that the Council authorize federal Home Investment Partnerships (HOME) funds be made available citywide.  On behalf of the Committee, Mayor Meeker moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Mr. West.  In response to questioning, City Manager Allen pointed out presently the funds are available only in redevelopment area.  Mayor Meeker pointed out the funds are not currently fully utilized in the redevelopment area and this would make them available citywide.  The motion as stated was put to a roll call vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Regan who voted in the negative.  Mr. Regan stated his no vote relates to his standard objection relative to utilization of federal funds for housing purposes.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT – JOINT VENTURE RENTAL PROPOSAL – CLIFFS AT GROVE BARTON – REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA; INFORMATION REQUESTED
Mayor Meeker reported the Budget and Economic Development Committee recommends that the review of Cliffs at Grove Barton for utilization of joint venture rental monies be reported out of Committee with no action taken.  Mayor Meeker stated he had received an email earlier today questioning if it is still an active project.  He stated without objection, he would suggest that the item be removed from the agenda but ask Administration to determine the status of the project, that is are they going ahead with a different project utilizing different money or exactly what is occurring.  Without objection it was agreed to follow that course of action.
FORECLOSURES – VARIOUS PROPERTIES – VARIOUS ACTIONS TAKEN
Mayor Meeker reported the Budget and Economic Development Committee recommends that Council approve 1) initiation of foreclosure proceedings on the properties listed below for nonpayment of mortgage; 2) bidding in at the foreclosure sale up to the amounts specified below; and, 3) use of City funds to acquire the property if successful bidder:
Property Address
City Payoff (thru 5/31/04)
Appraised Value
Maximum Bid
1504 Oakwood Ave
$102,650
$280,000
$212,000

1431 & 1433 E. Lane St.
$105,200
$110,500
$105,200

520 Parnell Drive
$  92,800
$  88,000
$  92,800
On behalf of the Committee, Mayor Meeker moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Mr. West and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
GREENWAY EASEMENT EXCHANGE – WESTBOROUGH SUBDIVISION – RESOLUTION OF INTENT ADOPTED
Mayor Meeker reported the Budget and Economic Development Committee recommends that Council approve the proposed greenway easement area exchange on lots 123 and 124 of the Westborough Subdivision for two areas of 655 square feet and 1025 square feet for a total of 1680 square feet along the common property lines of lots 123 and 124 to allow for buildable lots.  On behalf of the Committee, Mayor Meeker moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Mr. West.  Mr. Regan questioned if this is a volunteer exchange with the Mayor pointing out this is at the request of the property owner.  The motion as stated was put to a roll call vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Resolution 117.
PUBLIC UTILITIES FIELD OPERATION CENTER – PURCHASE OF PROPERTY - AUTHORIZED
Mr. West reported the Budget and Economic Development Committee recommends the City Council authorize the purchase of the .85 acre improved parcel of land located at 3316 Lake Woodard Drive from Jack H. Foust for the purpose of the planned expansion of the Public Utilities Field Operation Center at a price not to exceed $498,000.  On behalf of the Committee, Mr. West moved a recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker.  In response to questioning it was pointed out funds are available in this year’s budget.  The motion as stated was put to a roll call vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
DILLON SUPPLY – LEASE OF DOWNTOWN WAREHOUSE DISTRICT PARKING – APPROVED CONDITIONALLY
Mr. West reported the Budget and Economic Development Committee recommends the City Council authorize a lease agreement with Dillon Supply for 4 separate parking lots located adjacent to Dillon Supply’s downtown business operation with the final lease document to be established by joint review and consultation between the City Manager and the City Attorney’s office under the perimeters as outlined by Administration.  Mr. West moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Mayor Meeker.  It was pointed out this would provide for parking in the area at a reasonable rate.  The motion was stated was put to a roll call vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative accept Mr. Regan who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE
STREET CLOSING - LA COSTA WAY – REQUEST DENIED
It was pointed out the Public Works Committee, by split vote, recommends that the request to close La Costa Way be denied.  Ms. Taliaferro pointed out during the discussion it was clear the real issue relates to the vertical profile of the road; therefore, she would move that the City keep the street open but suggest that the City Council authorize that a letter be written to the developer asking him to address the situation and so moved.  Her motion was seconded by Ms. Cowell.
Mr. Regan stated he does not feel the real issue is the vertical profile.  He pointed out there are multiple different ways for people to get in and out, to get to their homes and he does not feel this road connection is necessary.  In addition 90 percent plus of the impacted homeowners signed the petition asking that the road be closed.  Ms. Cowell pointed out the City could recommend increased enforcement activities but pointed out the street does not qualify for traffic calming as it has only 470 cars per day.  Ms. Taliaferro talked about the City’s interconnectivity policy and agreement with Wake County pointing out if the street is closed this would be in violation of that agreement.  Mr. Regan pointed out closing the street does not cause inconvenience for anyone.  The motion as stated was put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Mr. Isley and Mr. Regan who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING COMMITTEE
REZONING Z-31-04 – MACON BOND ROAD CONDITIONAL USE – APPROVED WITH AMENDED CONDITIONS
Chairperson Hunt reported the Comprehensive Planning Committee recommends upholding the Planning Commission’s recommendation for rezoning this property to O&I-1 Conditional Use with amended conditions dated June 4, 2004.  A copy of the CR and amended conditions were in the agenda packet.
On behalf of the Committee, Mr. Hunt moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro.  Mr. Crowder spoke in opposition to the motion pointing out the property could be combined with adjacent property and sold as one lot.  He explained during Committee discussions he offered a compromise that if the applicant could not save the trees the site plan would come to City Council.  Mr. Hunt talked about the trees on the property pointing out the applicant has agreed to save two of the trees.  Mr. Hunt pointed out he is a certified tree hugger who wants to save all of the trees he can at any location.  He feels the applicant is offering a good effort.  Mr. West questioned if more than two trees could be saved.  Ms. Taliaferro talked about the Committee’s discussion on this item and pointed out she is very concerned.  Everyone want to save as many trees as possible but she feels uncomfortable with conditions being suggested pointing out we do not allow contract zoning.  She pointed out the new tree ordinance has not been adopted and she feels the applicant has offered good conditions.  
Mayor Meeker questioned if we have time for additional conditions to be presented with it being pointed out there is time. Mayor Meeker made a substitute motion to defer this case until the next meeting.  His substitute motion was seconded by Mr. Crowder.  Mr. Crowder stated he knows the City does not have contract zoning but pointed out he had offered a suggestion that would allow the case to move forward which is if the property is recombined with the adjacent property and developed as one piece the applicant could come to the Council with their site plan.  He feels what he is suggesting is a legitimate compromise.  Mr. Hunt pointed out the developer is up against a time restraint and he feels we should move forward.  Discussion took place as to how to move forward with Mr. West pointing out he would like to see the case approved but there is some additional information regarding the trees that he would like to have.  He would like to see the City Arborist give comments.  Mr. Hunt voiced concern about holding the issue and the detail in which the case is being considered.  The substitute motion to defer the case was put to a vote which resulted in Mr. Crowder, Ms. Cowell and Mayor Meeker voting in the affirmative and the remainder of the Council voting in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion defeated.  The original motion as made by the Comprehensive Planning Committee was put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative except Ms. Cowell and Mr. Crowder who voted in the negative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted.  See Ordinance 653ZC551.
MAYOR MEEKER – EXCUSED FROM REMAINDER OF THE MEETING

Mayor Meeker asked to be excused from the remainder of the meeting pointing out he has to travel out of town.  Mr. West moved that Mayor Meeker be excused from the remainder of the meeting.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  The Mayor ruled the motion adopted and left the Council meeting.  Mayor Pro Tem West took over.
CORRIDOR PLAN ISSUES – 401 LOUISBURG ROAD/CAPITAL BOULEVARD – REFERRED TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION
Chairperson Hunt reported the Comprehensive Planning Committee recommends that the Planning Commission study and make a recommendation on the policy boundary line established in connection with Rezoning Z-36-03 and its relationship to defining the core area of the Village Center designated at that time, with the understanding the Planning Commission will seek input from the Northeast CAC.  On behalf of the Committee,, Mr. Hunt moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro.
The City Clerk pointed out she had received an email from Brenda Coleman expressing concern relative to this action and had provided that email to all Council members.  The motion as stated was put to a vote which resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  (Mayor excused from meeting.)  The Mayor Pro Tem ruled the motion adopted.
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE
PUBLIC NUISANCE COST CONFIRMATION – 614/616 BRAGG STREET - CONFIRMED
Mr. Isley reported the Law and Public Safety Committee finds that the abatement and lien against 616 Bragg Street  in the amount of $583.18 as outlined in Resolution (1999) 304  was appropriately placed on the property and should not be relieved.  On behalf of the Committee, Mr. Isley moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  (Mayor Meeker excused from meeting.) The Mayor Pro Tem ruled the motion adopted.
HOUSING CODE VIOLATIONS – REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA
Chairperson Isley reported the Law and Public Safety Committee recommends that the item entitled “Housing Code Violations” be reported out of Committee with no action.  Without objection the item was removed.
LONGVIEW GARDENS – NEIGHBORHOOD ISSUES – REFERRED TO ADMINISTRATION
Chairperson Isley reported the Law and Public Safety Committee recommends that the item Longview Gardens – Neighborhood Issues be reported out of Committee and to Administration for follow-up work.  On behalf of the Committee, Mr. Isley moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  (Mayor Meeker excused from meeting.) The Mayor Pro Tem ruled the motion adopted.
ROAD RACES/WALKS – SCHEDULING – REFERRED TO ADMINISTRATION
Chairperson Isley reported the Law and Public Safety Committee recommends the item Road Races/Walks – Scheduling be reported out of Committee and to Administration for follow-up.  On behalf of the Committee, Mr. Isley moved the recommendation be upheld.  His motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  (Mayor Meeker excused from meeting.) The Mayor Pro Tem ruled the motion adopted.
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE
ANGUS BARN - DEVELOPMENT PLAN – REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA
Ms Cowell reported the Public Works Committee recommends the item relating to Angus Barn – Development Plans be reported out Committee with no action taken.  On behalf of the Committee, Ms Cowell moved the recommendation be upheld.  Her motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  (Mayor Meeker excused from meeting.) The Mayor Pro Tem ruled the motion adopted.
In response to questioning Ms. Cowell explained it was a very complicated issue with a number of pieces which relate to State DOT, etc.  The City staff helped the applicants navigate through the steps and provided some advice.  There is no action needed at this point.
STORMWATER FACILITIES – WILLIAMS PROPERTY – REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA 
Chairperson Cowell reported the Public Works Committee recommends that the item Stormwater Facilities – Williams Property be removed from the agenda with no action taken.  On behalf of the Committee, Ms. Cowell moved the recommendation be upheld.  Her motion was seconded by Ms. Taliaferro and put to a vote which passed unanimously.  (Mayor Meeker excused from meeting.) The Mayor Pro Tem ruled the motion adopted.
REPORT OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS
COUNCILOR REGAN – COMMENTS RECEIVED
It was at this point that Mr. Regan asked for permission to change his votes on the municipal service district as well as the condemnation case on Tryon Road.  (See minutes of the particular items.)
Ms. Taliaferro expressed concern about Council members changing their votes.  She stated prior to the Council meeting, Council members should carefully read their agenda and understand what they are voting on so that we will not have to come back and change votes.  She pointed out her concern is when an action is taken there are persons present in the audience to see what occurs.  A vote is taken, those people leave and then the votes are changed.  She stated it concerns her.  The comments were received.
WAKE FOREST – NEUSE RIVER CLASSIFICATION – COMMENTS RECEIVED
Mr. Regan stated he would like to further discuss the Wake Forest Neuse River water intake issue.  Mr. Isley stated he had been excused from participation on that item; therefore he would leave the room.  Mr. Isley left the Council Chambers.

Mr. Regan pointed out he still has concerns about the issue relative to classification of the Neuse River pointing out he has someone at the State telling him one thing and then he hears something from someone else that is entirely different.  He stated it is important for the City Council to know what the impact of the reclassification would really be.  He stated he would like to suggest that he be able to invite the people he has been talking with to the next Public Works Committee so that they can go head to head and make a determination of the impact on land use if the reclassification goes into effect.  Ms. Cowell pointed out the issue is no longer in Public Works Committee.  Ms. Taliaferro stated she did not see a need at this point.  She would prefer to go ahead and see what Legislative action is taken.  Mr. Regan stated he feels the City should start with the dialogue so everyone can understand what is really proposed or the impact.  No further action was taken.
BUDGET – RESOLUTION RELATIVE TO TAX INCREASE – NO ACTION TAKEN
Mr. Regan pointed out on a couple of previous occasions he has tried to get the Council to take an action committing that there will be no tax increase in the 2004/2005 budget.  He read the proposed resolution he had previously presented and moved its adoption.  He stated he would like for the Council to adopt the resolution so that a message can be sent that the City Council is going to do whatever it takes to adopt a budget without a tax increase.  His motion was seconded by Mr. Hunt.  Discussion took place as to whether the Council could vote on the resolution today, the Council’s policy of not voting on a resolution the day it is presented and the action that the Council took earlier today as it relates to Ms. Cowell’s resolution relative to the US Patriot Act.  City Attorney McCormick indicated in the case of Mr. Regan’s resolution he feels if the Council wanted to proceed to vote today the appropriate motion would be to suspend the rules and vote on the resolution today.  He stated in the case of the US Patriot Act resolution Ms. Cowell very clearly stated she wanted to amend the resolution that had been previously presented.  Dialogue followed with various Council members voicing their opinion as to what procedure should be taken and whether the vote should be delayed.  Mr. Regan pointed out if the Council doesn’t vote on the resolution tonight, the budget could be acted upon at the next meeting.  He stated he just wanted this Council to go on record as saying it does not want a tax increase.  The feeling that if the resolution is passed it would take a revenue source off the table – the tax increase was talked about.  Ms. Taliaferro pointed out she did not want any tax or fee increase; however, the City Council had not gone through the budget far enough to see what could or needs to be cut.  The Council needs to have further sessions to see what the wants and needs are and she is not to that point yet.  She stated she feels all the Council is trying to work towards not having an adverse impact on anyone.  Mr. Regan stated he is simply trying to get the Council to make a commitment that there would not be a tax increase.  Mr. Regan’s motion was put to a vote which resulted in Mr. Isley, Mr. Regan and Mr. Hunt voting in the affirmative and the remainder of the Council voting in the negative.  (Mayor Meeker excused from meeting.) The Mayor Pro Tem ruled the motion defeated.
ECONOMIC IMPACT STUDY - RECEIVED
Mr. Regan presented Council members with “A Recap of Economic Impact Study – Extended to Look at 1997 Actual Impact.”  He pointed out this study had been provided to him by Jim Walbrink of the Wake County Homebuilders Association.  The report was received.

SOLID WASTE TASK FORCE – FUTURE ROLE – REFERRED TO PUBLIC WORK COMMITTEE
Ms. Cowell pointed out representatives of the Solid Waste Task Force would like an opportunity to help out with the roll out of the new solid waste collection system.  She pointed out in addition we have a recycling contract which will come up for renewal in 2006.  She stated members of the task force would like to continue to work and provide assistance.  Ms. Cowell moved that an item be referred to Public Works Committee to look at the reconvening of the Solid Waste Task Force, what that may look like, what authority it could or should have, goals and objectives.  Without objection Mayor Pro Tem West referred the item to Pubic Works Committee.
TRAFFIC CALMING – OBERLIN/DANIELS – INFORMATION REQUESTED
Ms. Cowell pointed out there has been discussion on numerous occasions relative to traffic calming and community meetings to address various concerns in the Oberlin/Daniels Community area.  She stated she had been told meetings would be scheduled but she does not think that has occurred.  She asked for a report on the status of those issues.

FALSE ALARM ORDINANCE – COMMENTS RECEIVED
Ms. Taliaferro pointed out the Law and Public Safety Committee is doing further work on the False Alarm ordinance.  She asked that in the Committee’s deliberation that they consider the following issues:
Having the alarm installation companies do the actual registering of the alarms and have that rolled into the agreement of installation of an alarm into an individual’s home or business.  Mr. Isley pointed out the Committee is talking about taking the registration fee off the table.  There would be no license or fee from the City to have an alarm installed.  Ms. Taliaferro indicated another point of discussion relates to when is it a false alarm.  She talked about monitoring companies selling service agreements and questioned how that would be handled as it relates to false alarms.  Police Attorney Dawn Bryant indicated the monitoring issue is much more complicated.  She pointed out Administration is not proposing fining the companies, the fine would go to the user.  The responsibility will be on the shoulders of the users.  She pointed out installation and monitoring companies are regulated by State law.  Alarm companies are required to be licensed in North Carolina and there is a regulatory Board.  Comments were received.
LITTERING AND NUISANCES - VALLEY SPRINGS – REFERRED TO ADMINISTRATION; INFORMATION ON LITTERING FINES AND ENFORCEMENT - REQUESTED
Ms. Taliaferro talked about an ongoing problem on Valley Springs between Winchester and 401.  She talked about the littering problem, high grass under the utility lines and unkept areas.  She pointed out it is possibly a situation like the Melbourne Road ramp as it maybe a State maintenance area.  She pointed out this has been discussed previously and was taken care of but the problems are occurring again.  City Manager Allen pointed out he thought we sent out inspectors and the situation was abated.  Ms. Taliaferro asked for information on littering fines and how that work.
LYNHURST/PLATINUM/CROSSLINK – REFERRED TO ADMINISTRATION
Mr. West pointed out he was recently at a South CAC meeting and heard comments about the possibility of having a 3-way stop at the intersection of Lyndhurst and Platinum Drive being discussed.  He pointed out there seems to be some real concerns and maybe a flashing light or signs could be installed in the area.  There is concern about speeding on Lyndhurst Drive and the need for some type signal at Platinum and Crosslink.  The concerns were referred to Administration.
PLEASANT RIDGE/RAMSGATE COMMUNITY – VARIOUS CONCERNS – REFERRED TO ADMINISTRATION
Ms. Crowder pointed out Council members received information from the Pleasant Ridge/Ramsgate Community Watch relative to various concerns.  One of the concerns relates to 911 calls that they fear are not getting reported or recorded.  He talked about officers not getting all the calls, all of the reports not being recorded, etc.  He stated there was a recent incident relative to gunfire in the area that was reported by several different people however the 911 calls did not seem to be recorded appropriately.  He stated this is totally unacceptable and would like to receive a report on the concern.
TRAFFIC – BUCK JONES ROAD/440
Mr. Crowder talked about telephone calls and emails he had received from people in the Buck Jones Road area.  He talked about the status of the widening south of I-440 and pointed out he believes that is State maintained.  He also asked about the potential for a light at the veterinarian medical facility in that vicinity.

CONVENTION CENTER HOTEL – INVOLVEMENT OF THE CONVENTION CENTER COMMISSION – DIRECTION GIVEN
Mr. Hunt pointed out the Convention Center Commission would like to be involved in reviewing the proposals and the process relating to the convention center hotel.  He stated they would like to be involved with the architectural plans to make sure there is coordination between the hotel and the convention center and have a little say in what occurred.
HOUSING INSPECTIONS – REFERRED TO THE CITY ATTORNEY
Mr. Hunt pointed out there was a recent newspaper article and he had been contacted relative to inactivity on renovations to a house at the intersection of Jean and Lynn Roads.  He stated as he understands the house has been there quite sometime and a little work is done occasionally which keeps the permit alive.  Inspections Director Ellis indicated about three years ago the property owner got a permit to move a house to this location.  Under State law if there is any work being done on a facility then the permit stays valid.  All a person has to do is go out and drive a nail or two and the permit stays valid.  He stated he has known of cases that have gone on as much as seven years.  He stated if the permit became invalid then action could be taken.  The end of the year is November.  He stated the City has pictures of the facility and at this point they feel there is a little work that is ongoing.  He stated even if the City voided the permit for non-work and they made an application for a new permit it has to be issued.  The loophole in the law and at what point this could become legally a public nuisance was discussed.  Mr. Hunt asked the City Attorney to find a way to close that loophole and report back to Council.
DIX HOSPITAL – WALK-OFFS – REPORT REQUESTED
Mr. Isley expressed concern about the situation that took place at Dorothea Dix Hospital recently in which a patient had a walk-see around the City.  He suggested that the appropriate agency or person in the City notify the people at Dix and Human Resources that the City of Raleigh is very concerned and we can’t have this type situation occurring again.  He stated it is a very grave situation and he hopes that we will get a response from Dix or the appropriate agency or that they appear before the Council to give information about their security.  He talked about the patients at Dorothea Dix pointing out there are those that are mentally ill and those that are mentally ill who also pose a danger.  He stated he would like to have information on the security and exactly what happened.
HARRINGTON GROVE – CONCERNS – INFORMATION REQUESTED
Mr. Isley talked about increased graffiti and increased vandalism in the Harrington Grove area.  He asked that the Council be provided information on what is occurring in that area.

FUNERAL POSSESSIONS – CITY POLICY – INFORMATION REQUESTED
Mr. West pointed out recently at the South CAC meeting there was discussion about request for more than one courtesy car in a funeral possession.  He stated he does not know anything about the City’s procedure and asked that Administration provide the Council with information on our policies and procedures.

PERSONNEL – APPRECIATION EXPRESS
Mr. Regan expressed appreciation to City Manager Allen and the staff for their help and support when he has questions.  He pointed out when he has an issue he can simply ask the manager or a staff member and they have always been very helpful in supplying him information and helping him and he appreciates that.
APPOINTMENTS
APPOINTMENTS – VARIOUS ACTIONS TAKEN
The City Clerk reported the following results of the ballad vote:

Appearance Commission – One Vacancy – Tom Skolnicki – 3 (West, Crowder, Cowell; William Sweet – 1 (Meeker); Mitchell Fluhrer – 2 (Taliaferro, Regan) Andrea Marcos – 2 (Hunt, Isley)
Housing Appeals Board – Two Vacancies - No nominees.

Mechanical Examining Board – Two Vacancies – Rodney Markham and Tom Bullock – 6 each (all but West and Regan)
Mayor Pro Tem West announced the reappointments of Rodney Markham and Tom Bullock to the Mechanical Examining Board.  On the Appearance Commission it was agreed to drop the low vote getter, William Sweet and consider the other three at the next meeting.
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SHAW UNIVERSITY – DIRECTION GIVEN
City Attorney McCormick indicated recently the City Council authorized the sale of City-own property to Shaw University.  He talked about discussions or comments made at the public hearing relative to some negotiations between Murray Gould and Shaw University relating to the Rogers Bagley house.  He pointed out a settlement had been reached and explained the financing of the Bagley house in the amount of $75,000.  Everything is ready to move forward; however one of the lawyers in his office is on the deed of trust and he does not feel he can fulfill his obligations as it relates to interest, etc.  He pointed out he is recommending the Council accept the $75,000 as full and final payment and waive interest.  Ms. Taliaferro moved the recommendation be upheld.  Her motion was seconded by Mr. Regan and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  (Mayor Meeker excused from meeting.) The Mayor Pro Tem ruled the motion adopted.)
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE CITY CLERK

MINUTES – MAY 20 AND JUNE 1 – APPROVED - PRESENTED
Council member received in their agenda packets minutes of the May 20 and June 1, 2004 Council meetings.  Ms. Taliaferro moved approval as presented.  Her motion was seconded by Mr. West and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative. (Mayor Meeker excused from meeting.) The Mayor Pro Tem ruled the motion adopted.
PU 2003-8 – BEACHWOOD PARK SUBDIVISION – ASSESSMENT FEES CONFIRMED
During the October 8, 2003 Council meeting, the City Council adopted Resolution 2003-848 directing the installation of approximately 1,926 lineal feet of six-inch and 210 lineal feet of 12-inch main in Barwell Road, Charles Street, Shirley Street and Ann Avenue of the Beechwood Park Subdivision.  The project was to be assessed through a special fee based upon division of construction costs.  The project has now been completed and property owners are applying to tap on to the line.  Since the property is outside the City, it is recommended that the Council approve the special fee for each property and allow each property owner to pay the fee or enter into a contract for the fee of if they prefer the special financing method.  A copy of a spreadsheet showing the assessment and tap on fees as well as a copy of the financing agreement if the property owners choose that method were in the agenda packet.
The information on the various amounts was as follows:
	Physical
Address
	Real Estate ID
	Property 
Owner
	Owner Mailing Address
	Condition
Code
	Conditions
	Assessment Amount
	Tap Amount

	6309 Poole Rd
	8068
	Young, Eugene D. & Faye B. 
	5239 Hopewell Church Rd.

Trinity, NC 27370
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	6313 Poole Rd
	8069
	Jackson, Janie M.
	6313 Poole Rd,
Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	6317 Poole Rd
	8071
	Turner, Terry Dean
	6317 Poole Rd 
Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	6401 Poole Rd
	58596
	MDM Investors, Inc.
	PO Box 99069
Raleigh, NC 27624-9069
	2
	Special Assessment Fee and Normal Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	Normal at time of connection

	6400 Poole Rd
	18974
	McGee & Porter Investments Company
	2648 Buckeye Ct.
Wake Forest, NC 27587
	3
	Commercial Special Assessment Fee and Normal Tap
	$8,353.59
	Normal at time of connection

	1917 Barwell Rd
	71841
	Tyler, Morris
	1917 Barwell Rd.

 Raleigh, NC 27610
	4
	No Assessment and Special Tap Fee
	$0.00
	$925.00

	1921 Barwell Rd
	36384
	Johnson, Thelma S.
	1921 Barwell Rd.

 Raleigh, NC 27610
	4
	No Assessment and Special Tap Fee
	$0.00
	$925.00

	1925 Barwell Rd
	25608
	Goodson, Henry A. 
	1925 Barwell Rd.

 Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	2001 Barwell Rd
	35264
	Jeffreys, Leroy & Linda B.
	2001 Barwell Rd.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	2005 Barwell Rd
	8522
	Jeffreys, Leroy & Linda B.
	2001 Barwell Rd.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	5
	No Assessment and Normal Tap w/ Permission of Spite Strip Owner
	$0.00
	Normal at time of connection

	2009 Barwell Rd
	24087
	Gallaway, Angelia & Tyler Dejon Montague
	2009 Barwell Rd.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	5
	No Assessment and Normal Tap w/ Permission of Spite Strip Owner
	$0.00
	Normal at time of connection

	2013 Barwell Rd
	70038
	Goodson, Claudia & Roshea E.
	909 E. Hargett St.

 Raleigh, NC 27601
	5
	No Assessment and Normal Tap w/ Permission of Spite Strip Owner
	$0.00
	Normal at time of connection

	2017 Barwell Rd
	76050
	Tomlinson, Anthony D. & Valjean W.
	2017 Barwell Rd.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	6200 Shirley St
	3242
	Taylor, Vickey Russell & Eunice A.
	PO Box 14232, Raleigh, NC 27620-4232
	6
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee (90 Days to Pay/Illegal Service)
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	6204 Shirley St
	25225
	Winston, Bobby R. 
	6204 Shirley St, Raleigh, NC 27610
	6
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee (90 Days to Pay/Illegal Service)
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	6208 Shirley St
	25224
	Tomlinson, Clifton & Grace
	6208 Shirley St.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	6
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee (90 Days to Pay/Illegal Service)
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	6211 Shirley St
	71747
	Taylor, Eunice Ausby
	PO Box 14232, Raleigh, NC 27620
	6
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee (90 Days to Pay/Illegal Service)
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	6212 Shirley St
	25223
	Fountain, Laura H. & Jason J. 
	6212 Shirley St.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	6
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee (90 Days to Pay/Illegal Service)
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	1909 Ann Ave
	25235
	McGee & Porter Investments Company
	2648 Buckeye Ct. 
Wake Forest, NC 27587
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	1912 Ann Ave
	42825
	Price, Jerry M. & Mary H. 
	1912 Ann Ave.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	1915 Ann Ave
	25236
	Allen, Bernard II & Amy H.
	1915 Ann Ave.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	1920 Ann Ave
	73748
	Price, Monica A. 
	6404 Winding Arch Dr, Durham, NC 27713
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	1921 Ann Ave
	25237
	Wilson, Willard K. & Barbara
	1921 Ann Ave.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	1924 Ann Ave
	76640
	Brown, Noel & Daphine
	1924 Ann Ave.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	2001 Ann Ave
	26368
	Reynolds, Leroy & Gwendolyn I.
	303 Oberlin Rd.

Raleigh, NC 27605
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00


	2004 Ann Ave
	25609
	Thompson, Pauline Et. Al.
	2004 Ann Ave.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	2005 Ann Ave
	25226
	Davis, George D. & Damita D.
	261 Newton Rd.

Raleigh, NC 27615
	6
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee (90 Days to Pay/Illegal Service)
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	2008 Ann Ave
	38392
	Kearney, Nelson Leon
	2008 Ann Ave.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	2009 Ann Ave
	25227
	Winston, Christal D.
	813 Greenwich St.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	2012 Ann Ave
	16933
	Davis, Katie
	2012 Ann Ave.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	2013 Ann Ave
	25228
	Goodson, Douglas C.
	1324 Beverly Dr.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00

	2021 Ann Ave
	26371
	Littlejohn, Grace M. 
	41 Kennedy St NE
Washington, DC 20011-2467
	2
	Special Assessment Fee and Normal Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	Normal at time of connection

	6204 Charles St
	1249
	Allen, Bernard & Vivian S.
	6204 Charles St.

Raleigh, NC 27610
	1
	Special Assessment Fee and Special Tap Fee
	$4,176.80
	$925.00


Ms. Taliaferro moved approval as outlined.  Her motion was seconded by Mr. West and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the affirmative.  (Mayor Meeker excused from meeting.) The Mayor Pro Tem ruled the motion adopted.
ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business Mayor Pro Tem West announced the meeting adjourned at 5:20 p.m.
Gail G. Smith

City Clerk
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